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PART I - INTRODUCTION
Message from the Chairman of the Board of Directors
Dear Shareholders, Customers, Partners, and all Employees,

The year 2024 marked an important phase in the development journey of Trung Do Joint Stock
Company. Amidst economic volatility and challenging market conditions, we have tirelessly
strived to adapt flexibly and sustain operations.

Although revenue decreased to VIND 483 billion from VND 522 billion in 2023, we maintained
stability in our production and business operations, improved governance efficiency, and
consistently led in technological innovation investments, laying a solid foundation for the
coming years. Thanks to the unity, creativity, and determined spirit of our entire workforce, we
are building a strong base for future breakthroughs.

In the coming year, Trung Do will continue to accelerate innovation, improve product quality,
and strengthen cooperation to affirm its position in the market. We are committed to delivering
the best values to our shareholders, customers, and partners.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to extend my sincere gratitude to our
Shareholders, Customers, and all Employees who have accompanied Trung Do throughout this
journey. Let us continue onward together, conquering greater milestones and building
TRUNGDO into a prestigious and sustainable brand.

Key Figures for 2024

Indicator Result

1) Revenue VND 541.331 bn
- Product sales revenue VND 483.049 bn
- Internal sales revenue VND 58.282 bn
2) Profit before tax VND 21.390 bn
3) Expected dividend 5%

4) Contribution to state budget VND 16.517 bn

Vision — Mission — Core Values



Vision:

To become a leading company in Vietnam and the region in building materials production, a
reliable partner and the top choice of customers.

To build a strong TRUNGDO brand and elevate its reputation in the building materials and
interior-exterior decoration industry.

Mission:

TRUNGDO pioneers in offering innovative, eco-friendly products, committed to providing the
best products and services to society.

We aim to enhance living spaces, improve life quality for customers, and modernize urban
architecture.

To increase long-term sustainable value for shareholders and employees while managing capital
effectively and contributing to national development.

Core Values:
o Quality: Excellent products and services determine TRUNGDQ'’s reputation.
» People: Ethics — Responsibility — Professionalism — Creativity.

o Efficiency: In every activity, to increase value for both customers and TRUNGDO,

GENERAL INFORMATION

Company Name:
TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Business Registration Certificate No.:
2900324272 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Nghe An Province on
February 22, 2006 (13th amendment on February 5, 2025)

Charter Capital:
VND 300,000,000,000
Owner's Equity:
VND 300,000,000,000

Address:
No. 205 Le Duan, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province

Phone:
02383 844 410

Fax:
02383 830 431



Website:
http://trungdo.vn

Stock Symbol:

TDF

History of Formation and Development

1958: Vinh Architecture Company was established by the Ministry of Architecture with 4
intermediate technicians and 10 elementary-level officers. The company undertook major
projects requiring high technical expertise, such as the construction of Vinh Power Plant
(capacity of 8MW), Song Lam Sugar Factory, Vinh Oil Press Plant, the Nghe An
Provincial People's Committee headquarters, Vinh University of Education, Vietnam —
Poland Friendship Hospital, Military Zone IV barracks, and Vinh Rice Mill.

1976: The company was renamed from Vinh Construction Company to Construction
Company No. 6, under the Ministry of Construction, with main business activities in
construction and building materials production. From this point, the company expanded
its operations nationwide and took on new missions. To meet business and production
demands, it restructured its organizational model: affiliated construction sites were
transformed into subsidiaries with legal status and independent accounting, affirming the
scale of its operations. The company also focused on training and recruiting staff in
various fields such as mechanical repair, construction machinery, transportation,
installation, utilities, and building materials manufacturing.

September 1, 1995: The company officially became a member of Hanoi Construction
Corporation, marking the end of its 37-year operation as a state-owned enterprise under
the Ministry of Construction. It became the contractor for numerous large-scale projects
such as Ha Giang Power Plant, Nghe An Tate & Lyle Sugar Plant, Shell Bitumen Factory
in Cua Lo, Vinh University, Vietnam-Korea Technical School, Da Nang Water Park, and
dozens of solid schools from Nghe An to Khanh Hoa funded by Japan’s ODA. It also
worked on projects like the Voice of Vietnam station in Can Tho, Social Insurance
buildings in Binh Dinh, Nghe An, Ha Tinh provinces, Ly Thuong Kiet Street in Vinh City,
and the Nghen - Dong Loc Road in Ha Tinh. With modern equipment and advanced
construction techniques, the company successfully executed complex structures,
including the raw material warehouse, cooling tower, and coal mill of Nghi Son Cement
Plant, as well as the nearly 100-meter-high reinforced concrete heat exchange tower of
Hoang Mai Cement Plant.



1995 —2002: The company operated three clay brick manufacturing enterprises: Nam
Giang, Duc Thuan, and Hoang Mai Tile Enterprises, all utilizing tunnel kiln technology.
It also invested in a new artificial granite tile factory with an annual capacity of 1.5
million m2.

November 20, 2002: The company officially launched its granite tiles in the Central
Vietnam market with the first production line reaching 1.5 million m*/year.

2003: The company became the investor of the Nam Nguyen Sy Sach Urban Area project
located on Le Nin Boulevard in the center of Vinh City, Nghe An Province.

2005: In line with the Government’s policy to equitize state-owned enterprises, the
company was transformed into Construction Company No. 6 Joint Stock Company under
Business Registration Certificate No. 2703000803 issued by the Department of Planning
and Investment of Nghe An Province on February 22, 2006. At the time of equitization,
its charter capital was VND 13 billion, with the State holding the largest share at 50.1%.
This transformation marked a significant turning point. Despite facing challenges such as
profitability pressure and maintaining dividend payouts, the company achieved notable
business results.

June 22, 2007: The company registered as a public company with the State Securities
Commission of Vietnam.

2008: The company issued shares to increase its charter capital to VND 37 billion to meet
the demands of business expansion and investment. In the same year, it invested in a
second production line, raising the total capacity of the granite tile factory to 3.5 million
m?/year. Additionally, it invested in Vietnam’s first glazed ceramic roof tile production
line using Italian technology.

May 2008: The company changed its name from Construction Company No. 6 Joint
Stock Company to Trung Do Joint Stock Company, aiming to build and develop a
sustainable brand.

2010: The company issued shares to existing shareholders and strategic partners,
increasing charter capital from VND 37 billion to VND 80 billion. During this time, it
partnered with Urban and Industrial Construction Joint Stock Company to develop the
NO03-T6 apartment building project in the Diplomatic Corps urban area, Bac Tu Liem
District, Hanoi. It also invested in a 7-story low-income housing project in Trung Do
Ward, Vinh City.

2016: The company issued stock dividends, raising charter capital from VND 80 billion
to VND 92.63 billion.



2017: It issued private shares to strategic investors, increasing charter capital to VND 150
billion. The capital was used to invest in a brick factory applying semi-dry technology
using hilly soil, with a capacity of 120 million bricks/year in Bac Son Commune, Thach
Ha District, Ha Tinh Province.

March 20, 2020: Trung Do was granted a Securities Registration Certificate No.
18/2020/GCNCP-VSD by the Vietnam Securities Depository (VSD), with a total
registered share volume of 15,000,000 shares. On May 12, 2020, TDF stock was
officially traded on the UPCoM platform of the Hanoi Stock Exchange at a reference
price of VND 19,000/share.

October 2020: The company completed increasing its charter capital from VND 150
billion to VND 300 billion through a public offering to existing shareholders and private
placement to strategic investors.

2023: The company completed construction of Trung Do Slabstone Factory in Nghi
Van Commune, Nghi Loc District, Nghe An Province. This facility manufactures large-
format artificial stone slabs using a modern Continue+ production line supplied by
SACMI (Italy) with a capacity of 3.5 million m*/year.

3. Key Highlights in 2024

Early 2024: The company successfully exported its first shipment of large-format
artificial stone slabs to the U.S. market.

Q1/2024: Trung Do simultaneously launched two SlabGallery showrooms in Vinh City
and Hanoi, each covering 1,000 m? These showrooms aim to showcase a diverse and
rich ecosystem of building materials, featuring more than 300 samples of SLABSTONE
and SLATILES products manufactured using leading international technology, along with
top-tier supporting materials such as REX tile adhesive, FOX tile adhesive, and glazed
ceramic roof tiles.

December 2024: Trung Do successfully completed and passed the Ministry of Science
and Technology’s evaluation of its scientific research project on mastering and
developing advanced technology for the production of premium large-format artificial
stone slabs with a capacity of 3.5 million m*/year at the Trung Do Slabstone Factory.

4. Business Lines and Operational Areas

Business Lines:

Production and trading of construction materials



o Construction and installation of buildings and infrastructure
o Real estate business
Operational Areas:
o Trading construction materials nationwide and for export
o Construction and installation services within Nghe An Province

o Real estate operations within Nghe An Province

5. Corporate Governance Structure, Business Organization, and Management Apparatus
Organizational Structure of the Company and Its Subsidiaries
Organizational Chart:
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Qualification & Institution Position
Construction Materials Engineer — Tasken — Chairman of the
University (USSR) Board
Construction Materials Engineer — Hanoi ~ Board Member,
University of Civil Engineering Party Secretary
C1v1.l Eng-meer — Hanoi University of Civil Board Member
Engineering

Bachelor of Finance & Accounting — Hanoi Board Member

University of Finance & Accounting

Bachelor of Commerce — RMIT University Board Member

Executive Management Team
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Mr. Nguyen 1968

Construction Materials Engineer — Hanoi General Director, Board

Duy Hién University of Civil Engineering Member



Year of
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. Deputy General
Mr. Doan 1979 Bachelor of Finance & Accounting — Hano1 Di:)ecgr ;I;er q
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Mr. Phan Dang Bachelor of Economics — National Head of Supervisory
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Hung University
Ms. Nguyén Thi Bachelor of Finance & Accounting —
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6. Subsidiaries and Affiliated Units
Unit Address Main Business Activities Representative
Thai Mai :
Dang . hai Mai S.treet, Manufacturing high-end
Bac Vinh Industrial — ;p \NITE wall and floor
Trung Do Zone, Vinh Xuan ; : M. Trin Qubc Hing
g tiles, ceramic glazed roof ,
Granite Factory Hamlet, Hung Dong . . i — Factory Director
- ) tiles. Capacity: 3.5 million
Commune, Vinh City, m?/vear
Nghe An ¥

Hamlet 12, Nam Giang
Commune, Nam Dan
District, Nghe An
Province

Trung Do Nam
Giang
Enterprise

Producing bricks, roofing

tiles, and supplying ready-mix Mr. Trin Duy Ly —
concrete. Capacity: 36 million Enterprise Director
bricks/year



Unit Address
Block 10, Hoang Mai
Trung Do Hoang Town, Quynh Luu
Mai Enterprise District, Nghe An
Province
No. 15 Cu Chinh Lan
Trung Do Street, Trung Do Ward,
Enterprise No.1 Vinh City, Nghe An
Province
Trung Do Nghi Van Commune,
Slabstone Nghi Loc District, Nghe
Factory An Province
Xuan Son Hamlet, Bac
Trung Do Ha Son Commune, Thach
Tinh Factory  Ha District, Ha Tinh
Province
E'::;fj:t_on No. 231 Le Duan Street,
. ! Trung Do Ward, Vinh
Conlimg City, Nghe An Province
Center Gk
7. Development Strategy

Main Objectives

Main Business Activities Representative

Producing bricks, roofing

tiles, and supplying ready-mix Mr. Thai Duy Son —
concrete. Capacity: 32 million Enterprise Director
bricks/year

Construction of civil,

industrial, transport,

hydropower, and port Mr. Lé Tri Diing —
projects; manufacturing Enterprise Director

precast concrete components;
site leveling

Producing large-format Mr. Nguyén Duy
artificial stone slabs and other Hién — Company &
construction materials Factory Director

Producing bricks and roofing Mz Lé
tiles. Capacity: 120 million )
bricks/year

Xuén Dat —
Factory Director

Preparing investment projects,
master planning, technical
designs, and cost estimates for o
civil and industrial works

To develop the building materials sector with a focus on high-end products, high technology,
green manufacturing, resource efficiency, and environmental friendliness. In addition, the
company aims to expand into the construction and real estate sectors.

Medium- and Long-term Strategy

Project: Trung Do Integrated Building Materials Complex
Location: Nghi Van Commune, Nghi Loc District, Nghe An Province
Total Investment: VND 2,400 billion



Investment Phases:
o Phasel:
o Complete construction and installation of:
= 02 high-end large-format granite tile production lines (5 million m*/year)
» 01 tunnel brick production line using hilly soil (55 million bricks/year)
o Phase2:
o Complete construction and installation of:

» 01 high-end glazed ceramic roof tile production line (2.5 million
tiles/year)

= 01 additional tunnel brick line (55 million bricks/year)
= 02 more large-format granite tile production lines (2.5 million m*year)

Completion Time: Entire project to be operational before October 2027

Project: Trung Do Tan Ky Raw Material Processing Plant

Purpose: To refine raw soil into qualified input materials for the production of large-format tiles
and granite tiles.

Total Investment: VND 235.901 billion

Completion Time: Q1/2026

Company Objectives on Environment, Society, and Community

o To meet environmental requirements and actively participate in community development
activities.

Risk Assessment
Economic Risks

o The Vietnamese and global economies may continue to be affected by inflation, tight
monetary policies, and reduced consumer demand.

¢ This may directly impact the real estate and construction markets — key sectors associated
with the company’s business.



¢ Changes in monetary policy could increase borrowing costs, affecting the company’s
cash flow and profitability.

« Exchange rate fluctuations may influence the cost of imported raw materials.

» Rising raw material prices and operating costs require effective cost optimization
strategies to maintain profit margins.

Legal Risks

s Changes in corporate income tax, value-added tax, accounting, and auditing regulations
may affect the company’s financial obligations.

o Tighter project licensing, stricter real estate market control, and credit limitations could
hinder investment plans.

« Environmental protection and sustainable development regulations are being
strengthened. The company must strictly comply with resource exploitation, waste
treatment, and green production standards to avoid legal consequences.

Raw Material Supply Risks

o Continued increase in raw material prices and operating expenses demands the company
to optimize its costs to sustain profit margins.

Competitive Risks

o Large corporations with strong financial capacity, advanced technology, and wide
distribution networks may exert pressure on the company’s market share.

» The competition in pricing, product quality, and services is intensifying.

» Additionally, the company faces growing competition from imported tiles.

8. Business Operations in 2024

Production and Business Performance in 2024

No. Key Indicators Unit 2024 Value 2023 Value Change (%)
1 Total business value VND mil. 436,717 964,165  -54.7%

2 Revenue (incl. internal sales) =~ VND mil. 541,331 630,115  -14.09%

— Of which: Sales revenue VND mil. 483,049 522,796 -7.6%



No. Key Indicators Unit 2024 Value 2023 Value Change (%)
3 Profit before tax VND mil. 21,390 43,497 -50.8%

4  Profit before tax / Revenue %o 3.95 8.32 -4.37

5 Profit before tax / Charter capital % 7.13 14.50 -1.37

6 Profit after tax / Charter capital % 4.53 11.60 -7.07

7 Dividend ratio (estimated) % 5.0 10 -5.0

8 Charter capital VND mil. 300,000 300,000 0.0%

9 Tax paid to state budget VND mil. 16,517 34,051 -51.5%
Revenue and Gross Profit Breakdown

(Unit: million VND)

Bshid Siiitial Revenue Revenue Gross Profit Gross Profit

(2024) (2023) (2024) (2023)

sf(l;‘:;smds and finished 30,005 200959 26,187 75,534
Services and others 18,648 17,937 5,549 4972
Ej:il:ezt:te et 76,928 99,698 44,680 45,949
Production Results of Building Materials

No. Product Type Unit 2024 Output 2023 Output

1  Granite tiles + sintered stone Mil. m? 1.234 2.037

2 Glazed ceramic roof tiles ~ Mil. pes 1.293 2.104

3  Standard clay bricks Mil. pes 74.732 94.112

4 Ready-mix concrete m? 130,218 125,708




Sales Results of Building Materials

No. Product Type Unit 2024 Sales 2023 Sales
1  Granite tiles + sintered stone Mil. m* 1.015 1.324

2 Glazed ceramic roof tiles  Mil. pes 1.034 2.080

3 Standard clay bricks Mil. pes 77.849 75205

4 Ready-mix concrete m? 130,218 125,642

Real Estate and Construction Activities

o Real Estate Business:

In 2024, the company continued transferring and delivering apartment units and leasing
commercial space at two projects:

o Nam Nguyen Sy Sach Urban Area in Vinh City, Nghe An Province
o NO03-T6 Diplomatic Corps Project in Bac Tu Liem District, Hanoi

¢ Construction Business:

Trung Do Enterprise No. 1 was responsible for construction works of internal projects
where the company acts as the investor.

9. Organization and Personnel
Executive Board

List of Internal Managers and Related Persons

Position in ID/Passport No.,

No. Name the Date & Place of i Shares - Ownership Notes
Address Held (%)
Company  Issue
No. 182309
11 e U Quarter 3, Quan

Nguyén General —Issued on :
Duy Hidn Director  25/04/2014 —Nghe 2% Ward; Vinh 317,445 1.1%

An Polios City

1



Position in  ID/Passport No.,

Contact Shares Ownership
No. Name  the Date & Place of Address Held (%) Notes
Company  Issue
ID No. 181264364
A Deputy
Trén Vin —Issued on Hong Son Ward,
368 0.8%
2 Hoan Ol 0411012006 —Nghe Vinh City S
Director :
An Police
Dessay ID No. 182150186
Poan — Issued on Ha Huy Tap
157 L1
3 QuangLe 5™ 08/12/2007 ~Ngh¢ Ward, Vinh City 954 (036
Director ,
An Police
Neuvén ID No. 182178336 Tan Hung
4 Nﬁmy Chief — Issued on Hamlet, Hung 64229 0.2%
" Accountant 22/06/2007 —Nghé Loc Commune, =

An Police Vinh

Workforce Structure and Policy
o Total number of official employees: 492 people

Workforce Composition:

Qualification Level Number of Employees Proportion (%)
University degree and above 84 17.07%

College and vocational education 47 9.55%

Technical workers and skilled laborers 291 59.15%
Unskilled and seasonal laborers 70 14.23%

Total 492 100%

Employee Policies and Benefits

« Employees are entitled to full legal benefits including salaries, allowances, and bonuses
in accordance with labor laws.

e In addition to salary and bonuses, the company provides:



o Stable employment and full participation in social, health, and unemployment
insurance.

o Office supplies, work equipment, and labor protection suitable for each position.
o Annual health check-ups and safety training for all staff.

o Full benefits on public holidays such as April 30 (Reunification Day), May 1
(International Labor Day), September 2 (National Day), the Hung Kings'
Commemoration Day, International Women’s Day, New Year, and Lunar New
Year.

o Gifts for employees’ children with academic achievements on Children’s Day and
Mid-Autumn Festival.

o Leave and vacation in accordance with government regulations.

o Lunch and shift meal allowances, fuel and phone allowances, hardship support,
and welfare for illness, maternity, or bereavement.

o Annual training programs (domestic and abroad) for outstanding employees with
professional achievements.

10. Investment Situation and Project Implementation
Major Investments

1. Trung Do Building Materials Integrated Complex Project (Nghi Van Commune):

The project has been prioritized for resource allocation to ensure on-time progress. As of the end
of 2024, the project had completed construction and installation, and began trial operations of the
large-format artificial stone slab factory (Slabstone Factory) under Phase 1.

» Total investment spent so far: ~VND 900 billion.

2. Trung Do Tan Ky Raw Material Processing Plant Project
Approved by the People’s Committee of Nghe An Province under Decision No. 90/QD-UBND
dated September 7, 2021.

o Capacity: 300,000 tons/year, meeting raw material demands for granite tiles and large-
format slabs at company-owned plants.

» The company has completed all legal procedures, land clearance, and is preparing ground
leveling and installation of equipment in early 2025.




3. Additional Investments

o Purchase of new concrete pump trucks, mixer trucks, and material transport vehicles
to enhance production capacity at Nam Giang Concrete Station.

11. Finaneial Situation

a. Summary Financial Indicators

(Unit: VND)

Indicator 2024 2023 % Change
Total assets 1,581,562,500,965 1,705,751,067,796 -7.28%
Net revenue 479,672,838,624 518,595,509,522 -7.51%

Net operating profit (14,420,331,261) 42,857,362,166 -133.65%

Profit before tax 21,390,078,060  43,497,265,024  -50.82%
Profit after tax 13,607,993,793  34,816,388,916  -60.91%
Dividend payout ratio (*) 110.23% 86.17% +27.92%

(*) The 2024 Annual General Meeting approved a dividend plan of 5% on charter capital,
equivalent to VND 15,000,000,000.

b. Key Financial Ratios

Financial Ratios Unit 2024 2023
Liquidity Ratios

- Current ratio Times 1.33 1.28

- Quick ratio Times 0.28 0.31

Capital Structure Ratios

- Debt / Total assets Times 0.52 0.55



Financial Ratios Unit 2024 2023

- Debt / Equity Times 1.07 1.22
Activity Ratios

- Inventory turnover Times 1.00 1.23
- Net revenue / Total assets Times 0.30 0.30
Profitability Ratios

- Net profit margin (Net profit / Net revenue) % 2.84 6.71
- ROE (Net profit / Average equity) % 1.78 4.52
- ROA (Net profit / Average total assets) % 0.86 2.10

- Operating profit margin (Op. profit / Net revenue) % -3.10 8.26

- Earnings per share (EPS) VND 454 1,161

12. Shareholders, Capital Changes, and Ownership Structure
Share Information

¢ Total number of shares: 30,000,000

s Type of shares: Common shares

o Number of freely transferable shares: 30,000,000 (100%)

Shareholder Structure

(Based on shareholder list as of December 2, 2024, provided by VSDC)

No. of No. of Shares % of Charter
(VND
Category Shareholders Held L ) Capital
Domestic
543 30,000,000 300,000,000,000 100%

Shareholders



No. of

No. of Shares

% of Charter

Category Sharcholders  Held Vale (VNI coital
- Organizations 5 4,817,032 48,170,320,000 16.05%
- Individuals 538 25,182,968 251,829,680,000 83.95%
g:l:?eglrolders 0 0 0 0%
- Organizations 0 0 0 0%
- Individuals 0 0 0 0%
Treasury Shares 0 0 0 0%

Total: 543 shareholders holding 30,000,000 shares (100% of capital)

List of Major Shareholders

(As of December 2, 2024)

SHIe LI:{:;S;I.W“ HAddevas I::;::s :l){]wnership
1 gg;rggziti“;;‘g“ 0100106338 ;;QBa“mf‘rngn’;’:‘fI::;i 3,022,032 10.07%
2 Mr. Nguy&n Hong Son 181819369 Vinh City, Nghe An 4,724,529 15.75%
3 Ig;;hNg“yén ThiMJ 181443600  Vinh City, Nghe An 5,719,621 19.07%
4 MsNgwénHolng 0 c000e  VinhCity, NgheAn  4,053334 13.51%

Phuong Nga

(From December 3 to December 31, 2024, no transactions were reporied by major
shareholders.)

Capital Changes in 2024
o Charter capital remained unchanged.

e Treasury shares transactions: None



¢ Other securities: None

13. Report and Evaluation from the Board of Management
2024 Production and Business Overview

The company did not meet the business targets approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders. Both revenue and profit decreased compared to 2023. However, in the context of a
challenging business environment for the building materials industry, the Board of Management
closely monitored the situation and promptly implemented flexible solutions to promote product
sales, enhance marketing activities, and restructure assets and capital to ensure profitability and
continued investment.

Financial Overview
« Total assets decreased slightly from VND 1,705.75 billion to VND 1,581.56 billion.

o Short-term and long-term assets dropped by VND 71.09 billion and VND 53.10
billion, respectively.

o The company reduced inventories, sold apartments, and collected receivables to
repay loans.

o Depreciation of the Slabstone Factory was the main cause of the long-term asset
reduction, while there were not many new investments during the year.

Liabilities

o Loans decreased from VND 688.54 billion in 2023 to VND 616.18 billion in 2024,
aligning with the company’s lower revenue and reduced capital needs.

e The company also recorded a VND 39.01 billion decrease in the Science and
Technology Development Fund due to final settlements of the scientific project on
developing large-format artificial stone slab production technology.

2025 Business Plan and Strategic Direction
» Focus on boosting tile sales through:

o Effective operation of showrooms in Vinh and Hanoi



o Increasing and training personnel in the sales department
o Promoting advertising and sales channels
o Expanding the distribution network and supporting dealers

o Commence investment in the Tan Ky raw material processing plant, ensuring stable
input supply for both the Slabstone and Granite factories.

2025 Targets (Unit: million VND)

No. Key Indicator Value Note
1 Total business value 646,790

2 Revenue 660,395

3  Profit before tax 19,850

4  Tax contribution to state 30,000

5 New investments 40,000

14. Evaluation from the Board of Directors
Evaluation of Company Operations in 2024

The Board of Directors (BOD) acknowledges that it did not successfully implement the 2024
Annual General Meeting (AGM) resolution:

» Revenue achieved in 2024 was only 68.07% of the target set by the AGM.
s Profit before tax reached 49.15% of the assigned target.

Evaluation of the Performance of the Board of Management

Since the General Director and Deputy General Directors are also members of the Board of
Directors, supervision and direction by the BOD were continuous, consistent, and rigorous
throughout the year.




Plans and Directions of the BOD

and international markets.

quality, and protect the TRUNGDO brand reputation.

Intensify marketing and sales activities, reduce inventory, and expand both domestic

Continue strategic investment in raw material supply, maintain preduct and service

15. Corporate Governance

Board of Directors

Members and Structure

No.

o Shares
Member Name Position Held

Mr. Nguyén Hong Son Chairman 4,724,529

2 Mr. Tran Vin Hoan Member 235,368
3 Mr. Nguyén Duy Hién Member 317,445
4 Mr. Poan Quang Lé Member 157,653
s Ms. Nguyén Hoang Phuong Member 4,053,334
Nga
» Board Committees: None
Board Activities

Meetings
Attended

1717
1717
1717

1717

17/17

Absences &
Reason

The Board held both regular and extraordinary meetings in accordance with the

company's charter.
Regular meetings were held to:

o Approve annual business plans

o Review quarterly business performance and approve plans for the next quarter

o Approve investment in machinery, project implementation, procurement of raw

materials, marketing strategies, and technology upgrades

Extraordinary meetings were called to:



o Restructure executive leadership

o Approve loan agreements and asset mortgages
o Adjust investment projects

o Convene the 2024 Annual General Meeting

o Address urgent operational matters

Key Resolutions Passed in 2024

No. Resolution Dt Cotent Approval
No. Rate
1 01/Qb- 15/01/24 Adj.usnnent of Trung Do Building Materials Complex 100%
HBbQT project
05/NQ- Approval of loan from Vietcombank — Nghe An o
2 HPQT 01/03/24 Rranch 100%
08/NQ- Convening the 2024 Annual General Meeting of L
3 HPQT 26/04/24 S P 100%
10/NQ- ; : . ;
4 HPQT 15/05/24 Investment in upgrading Nam Giang Concrete Station 100%
13/NQ- Guarantee for Tan Ky Plant project loan at OCB — "
5 HPQT 23/05/24 Nghe An Branch 100%
29/NQ- " :
6 HPOQT 15/07/24 Loan agreement with Vietinbank — Vinh Branch 100%
32/NQ- Dismissal and reassignment of Ms. Phan Thi Hoang
4 ' 0
L HBQT OL/0R2 Yén as Director of Granite Factory s
33/NQ- Termination of Mr. Pham Hai Linh’s role as Director o
8 HBQT e of Enterprise No.1 100%
34/NQ- Appointment of Mr. Trin Qudc Hing as Director of i
9 HPQT 01/08/24 Graiits Faeios 100%
10 35/NQ- 01/08/24 Appointment of Mr. Lé Tri Diing as Director of 100%

HBQT Enterprise No.1



No. Resolution Date e Approval
No. Rate
36/NQ- Appointment of Ms. Phan Thi Hoang Yén as Head of

1 Q

o HBQT ERGEES Technical Construction Dept. e

37/NQ- Loan plan approval with Vietcombank — Nghe An
1009

12 HDPQT 07/08/24 Branch 0%
38/NQ- g ;

13 HPQT 22/08/24 Approval of construction drawings for Tan Ky Plant  100%
40/NQ- :

C 1009

14 HDQT 08/10/24 Opening of loan guarantee at OCB Yo
41/NQ- ’ .

15 14/10/24 Contract approval with related parties 100%
HDbQT
42/NQ- . e . oo

16 HPQT 14/11/24 Finalizing shareholder list for 2023 dividend payout 100%
43/NQ- ' ; i

17 HDQT 23/12/24 Adjustment of Tan Ky Project 100%

s Directors with Corporate Governance Certification: None

16. Supervisory Board

16.1. Members and Structure

No. Name Position Appointment Date Qualification

1 Mr. Phan Ding Head of Supervisory Appointed: Bachelor of
Diing Board 06/05/2021 Economics

= -

g MeNguyenThi @ e 12/10/2022 Bachelurot
Minh Economics

3 MrlrnQuoc  prember 27/05/2023 Eaculbeot
Hiing Economics




16.2. Supervisory Activities

o Evaluated the performance of the Board of Directors and the Executive Board in terms of
corporate governance and operational management.

« Reviewed the legality and compliance of management practices, accounting, statistics,
and quarterly financial reporting.

 Audited business performance and financial reports: quarterly, semi-annually, and
annually.

16.3. Audit Results of 2024 Financial Statements

o The Supervisory Board did not detect any irregularities in the financial reports prepared
by the company.

e The financial control system and internal meetings operated effectively, enabling timely
identification and resolution of issues.

o The Supervisory Board agreed with the assessments made by the independent auditors
regarding the company’s business and financial performance.

16.4. Oversight of the Board of Directors and Executive Board

o The BOD held periodic and ad-hoc meetings in accordance with legal and internal
regulations.

o The BOD supervised the Executive Board closely and promptly directed business
operations, ensuring alignment with AGM resolutions.

o All BOD members fulfilled their duties in accordance with the Law on Enterprises and
the Company Charter, showing dedication, unity, and strategic leadership in increasing
revenue, profit, tax contributions, and improving employee welfare.

e The Executive Board carried out business operations per its delegated authority and in
line with BOD resolutions. Management duties were assigned to each department and
subsidiary.

o Monthly review meetings were held to assess performance and set goals for the following
month.

o The Executive Board demonstrated strong leadership and implemented effective
strategies to overcome difficulties, making optimal use of resources to fulfill the 2024
shareholder resolutions.



16.5. Evaluation of Cooperation Between Supervisory Board, BOD, Executive Board, and
Shareholders

The cooperation among the Supervisory Board, BOD, Executive Board, and shareholders
was effective, independent, and ongoing.

The Supervisory Board received timely and adequate documents and information on
governance and operations.

Participated in all regular BOD meetings and Executive Board reviews.

Maintained frequent communication with BOD and Executive Board members regarding
governance issues.

Regularly updated major shareholder information.

All recommendations submitted to the BOD and Executive Board were seriously
considered and addressed.

16.6. Supervisory Board’s Opinion and Recommendations

» The company's activities during the year complied with the Law on Enterprises,

Securities Law, the Company Charter, and related regulations.

Disclosure of information was conducted in accordance with current legal regulations.

17. Transactions, Compensation, and Benefits of the BOD, Executive Board, and
Supervisory Board

a, Compensation

Total compensation paid in 2024: VND 840,000,000
Details:

Board of Directors:

No. Name Position Monthly Compensation (VND)

1

Mr. Nguy&n Hong Son Chairman 15,000,000

2 Mr. Nguy&n Duy Hién Board Member 9,000,000



No. Name Position
3 Mr. Trén Van Hoan Board Member 9,000,000
4 Mr. Poan Quang Lé Board Member 9,000,000

5 Ms. Nguyén Hoang Phuong Nga Board Member 9,000,000

Supervisory Board:

No. Name Position Monthly Compensation (VND)

Monthly Compensation (YND)

1 Mr. Phan Pang Diing Head of Board 9,000,000

2 Ms. Nguyén Thj Minh Member 5,000,000

3 Mr Tran Qudc Hing Member 5,000,000

b. Share Transactions by Internal Personnel and Related Parties

e None

c. Contracts or Transactions with Internal Related Parties

; . ID No. &
No. Name Relationshi Tssuance Addres
P Info
1D:
sl 181443600, U0
Nguye : Dun
| nThi Major Issued Ward
_ " Shareholder 20/05/2012 _. .~
My CARghs O
Canh ;\n City

Period of
Transactio
n

Jan, Mar,
Nov, Dec
2024

Resolution/Decisio

Transactio
n
Description
& Value

Principal
withdrawal:
VND 21.45
billion
Interest
received:
VND 1.881
billion
New loan:
VND 7.65
billion



Relationshi
No. Name

Mr. Board
Nguyé Member &
nDuy General
Hién Director

Ms.

Nguyé

n Board
Hoang Member
Phuong

Nga

ID No. & Addres Period ot:

Issuance Transactio

Info : n

ID:

182309088, Q:j“

Issued Ward Feb—Mar

25/04/2014 _ . " 2024
Vinh

, CA Nghe City

An

D: 6’%’!6;’9
Vinh

013463328,

Issued Phuc Jan—Dec

15/10/2012 IS;." e 2034

, CA Hanoi Hano

1D:

180074074, H““;g

Issued Warg Jan, Aug,

25/03/2014 . .° Nov 2024
Vinh

, CA Nghe City

An

Resolution/Decisio

Transactio
n
Description
& Value

Principal
withdrawal:
VND 850
million
Interest
received:
VND 138
million

New loan:
VND 15
billion
Monthly
principal
withdrawal:
VND 750
million
Interest
received:
VND 753
million

Principal
withdrawal:
VND 2.3
billion
Interest
received:
VND 239
million
Tile
payment:
VND 113
million




d. Evaluation of Corporate Governance Compliance

The Board of Directors, Executive Board, and Supervisory Board complied with the Law on
Enterprises, the guidelines on corporate governance for public companies, and internal
regulations. Key compliance activities included:

o Directing and strengthening internal control to ensure resolutions and decisions of the
BOD and internal policies were implemented effectively.

» Continuing to refine processes and regulations to improve organizational performance
and legal compliance.

18. Environmental and Social Impact Report
Environmental Impact Assessment

Trung Do Joint Stock Company always places environmental protection as a top priority in its
sustainable development strategy. The company constantly complies with environmental
regulations and applies advanced manufacturing technologies to minimize negative impacts on
the ecosystem.

Investments have been made in wastewater treatment systems, emissions control, and process
optimization to save energy and reduce industrial waste. Moreover, Trung Do actively
participates in environmental protection programs and collaborates with specialized
organizations to raise awareness and promote green solutions in business activities.

These efforts not only ensure regulatory compliance but also demonstrate Trung Do’s strong
commitment to sustainability, contributing to environmental and community protection.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Trung Do Joint Stock Company clearly recognizes its responsibility to the local community,
considering it an integral part of its sustainable growth strategy. The company has implemented
many community support programs, including sponsoring housing for the poor and
contributing to the "Tet for the Poor" campaign with funding in the hundreds of millions of dong.

These contributions reflect Trung Do’s social responsibility and help build a sustainable and
prosperous community.

Financial Statements (Aftached)



Vinh City, April 15, 2025
CONFIRMATION BY THE COMPANY’S LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE
( (Signature, full name and seal)
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TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company presents its report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024.

Company Overyiew.

Trung Do Joint-Stock Company, formerly Construction Joint Stock Company No. 6, was established
and operated ‘under the Business Registration Certificate of Joint Stock Company No. 2703000803
issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Nghe An province for the first time on
February 22, 2006. On May 8, 2008, the Company was granted the first Business Registration
Certificate change, changing its name to Trung Do Joint Stock Company.

During the Company's operationshas been (12) twelve timesThe Department of Planning and
Investment of Nghe An province issucd a supplementary Business Registration Certificate regarding
the change of the company's legal representative. The 12th amended Business Registration Certificate
No. 2900324272 was issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Nghe An province. April
14, 202 lon changing the legal representative of the company.

Charter capital according to the 12th business registration certificate: 300,000,000,000 VND

Actual contributed charter capital as of December 31, 2024: VNI 300,000,000,000

Shareholders Capital Rate (%)
contribution
. (VND)
Hanoi Construction Corporation 30,220,320,000 10.07%
Mr. Nguyen Hong Son 47,245,290,000 15.75%
Mrs. Nguyen Thi My Canh 57,196,210,000 19.07%
Ms. Nguyen Hoang Phuong Nga 40.533,340,000 13.51%
Other Shareholders 124,804,840,000 41.60%
Add 300,000,000,000 100.00%
Headguarters:

Address: No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
Phone: 038 3844 410

Fax: 038 3830 431

Taxcode:2900324272

Financial situation and business operations

The consolidated financial position as of December 31, 2024, the consolidated results of operations and
consolidated cash flows for the fiscal year then ended of the Company are presented in the
Consolidated Financial Statements attached to this report.(from page 07 to page 59).

Events after the closing date of the consolidated financial statements

The Company's Board of Dircotors confirms that there are no events occurring after December 31, 2024
up to the date of this report that have not been considered for adjustment of figures or disclosure in the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

wTE WA
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"TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (next)

Board'of Dnréé’thrs‘ghd Executive Board, Management
The Board qu:rectors and Executive Board of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report’ mclude s

m
¥

Board of D!rectors
Full name' . - % . Position
Mr. Nguyen Hong Son : - Chairperson
. Mr. Tran.Van Hoan ; Member
Mr. Nguyen Duy Hien Member
& Mr. Doan Quang Le ' . Member
. A Ms. Nguyen Hoang Phuong Non-executive
‘1" Nga ik ] Board Member
Baam' of ContraI ‘1\ .
Bull fetne ) 'Y Position .. Date of appointment/removal
Mr. Phan Dang Dung " Prefect
Mis. Ngiiven Thi Minh - Commissioner
Mr. Tran Quo¢'Hung - Commissioner
Board of Directors
Full name o Position
Mr, Nguyen Duy Hien Manager
Mr, Tran Van Hoan Vice president
Mr. Doan Quang Le - Vice p‘resident
Auditor

Nhan Tam Viet Auditing Company Limited has audited the Consolidated Financial Statements.for the
fiscal year ending December 31, 2024.

Board of Directors Confirmation
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for preparing the consolidated financial statements

that give a true and fair view of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the
Company during the year, In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Company's Board of
' Directors undertakes to comply with the following requirements:

- Establish and maintain internal controls that the Board of Directors and the Management Board
determine are necessary to cnable the preparation and presentation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or crror;

- Select suitable aécounting policics and apply them consistently;

- Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- State whether the applicable accounting standards have been followed, and whether there arc any
material deviations that need to be disclosed and explained in the Consolidated Financial Statements;

- Prepare and present the consolidated financial statements in complance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, Enterprise Accounting Regime and legal regulations related to the
preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements;

- Prepare the consolidated financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Company will continue in business.

3 v ™%



TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY
REPORT OF THEI BOARD OF DIRECTORS (next)

The Board of Dlrectm's of the Company ensures that the accounting records are kept to reflect the
financial pdsmqn of the Company, with a fair and reasonable level at any time and to ensure that the
consohdatcd‘f'mancm statements comply with current regulations of the State. At the same time, it is
respongible fnr cﬁsumhg the safety of the Company's assets and taking appropriate measures to prevent
and detect f‘raud and athcr violations.

The Company's Board of Directors commits that the Consolidated Financial Statements have fairly and
fairly reflected tlie Company's financial position as of December 31, 2024, its business performance and
cash flows for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, Enterprise Accounting Regime and comply with legal regulations related to the preparation
and presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements. | |

Other commitments
The Board of Directors commits-that the Company complies with Decree 155/2020/ND-CP dated

December 31, 2020 guiding corporate governance applicable to public companies and the Company
does not violate the obligation to disclose information as preseribed in Circular 96/2020/TT - BTC
dated November 16, 2020 of the Ministry of Finance guiding information disclosure on the stock
market. -

Nghe An March 29, 2025
On behalf of the Board of Directors\j,./
- ¥

Nguyen Duy Hien
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CONG TY TNHH KIEM TOAN NHAN TAM VIET ; |
NHANTAMVIET AUDITING COMPANY <

K&t néi - Phat trién

Number @ 0407.01.02/2024/BCTC-NTY2

|| : INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT

, Dear ~ i Shareholders, Board of Directors, Management
Trung Do Joint Stock Company o
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Trung Do Joint Stock :;E
Company prepared March 29, 2025, pages 07 to 59, including: Consolidated balance sheet as of NI
December 31, 2024, Consolidated income statement, Consolidated cash flow statement for the fiscal "','
year then epded and Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. . - L
al

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the |
Company's consolidated financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the
Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and legal regulations related to the preparation and
presentation of consolidated financial statements and is responsible for internal control that the Board
of Directors determines is necessary to ensure the preparation and presentation of consolidated financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibilities

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our andit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. These standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

= An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statcments in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
I ‘expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control, An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policics used and the reasonablencss of accounting

estimates made by the General Director, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements. : :

Triy 5& Chinh:

. Tang 2, tha riha Platinum Residences, 50 6 Ng wyen Cong Hoan, 5 Chi nhénh tai Ha Néi:

| Phiveng Naoc Khanh, Quan 8a 8inh, Thanh pho Ha Mol Ve Nam 56 12 Phda METH Ha, B ME T, Q. Nam TirLiém, TP, Ha Noi
[T] (B4-24) 3761 3399 [F] (84-24) 3761 5599 Chi nhanh tai TP. HG Chi Minh:
W] wowene/Avprauditvn [E] vpa@ritvavn 9B Y0 Tang Phan, P An Pha, Q. 2, TP H6 Chi Minh




INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT (CONTINUED)
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion.

Auditor's opinion .

In our opinion, the Consolidated Financial Statcments give a true and fair view, in all material respects,
of the financial position of Trung Do Joint Stock Company as at December 31, 2024, as well as the
consolidated results of its operations and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and

the relevant legal regulations on preparation and presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements.
Hanoi, March 29, 2025

NHAN TAM VIET AUDIT COMPANY LIMITED
Deputy ngéral Ma'nag‘g,r Auditor

‘Nguyen Thi Hanh Pham Van Tuan
Certificate of Business Registration No.: Certificate of Business Registration
1690-2023-124-1 No.: 4497-2023-124-1
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TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
CONSOLIDA_'TED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal ‘year edding December 31, 2024

Consolidated balance sheet(next)

CONCLUSIVE BALANCE SHEET

" As of December 31, 2024
Unit: VND
ASSET ' Code Explanation Year-end number Beginning of year
numbenr
VND VND
A. SHORT-TERM ASSETS 100 584.129,104.268 655.221.064.027
L Cash and cash equivalents 1o V.1 9.890.781.731 13.232,983.266
1. Cash 111 9890781731 13.232.983.266
2. Cash equivalents 112 - -
II. Short-term financial investments = 120 1.000.000.000 7.462.313.886
1. Trading securities 121 - -
2. Provision for impairment of trading
securities 122 = B
3. Held-to-maturity investment 123 V.2 1.000.000.000 7.462.313.886
. Short-term receivables 130 95.278.553.663 105.426.070.884
1.Short-term trade receivables 131 V3 07.922,860.251 106.802.074.886
2. Short-term seller advance 132 V.4 5.895.894.145 7.563.418.330
3. Short-term internal receivables 133 - -
4. Receivable according to construction 134 / .
contract progress plgn
5. Short-termloan receivable 135 V.5a . 90,000.000
6. Other short-term receivables 136 V.6a 10.475.659.373 9.588.167.976
7. Provision for doubtful short-term
i = 137 V.7 (19.015.860.106)  (18.617.590.308)
receivables
8. Assets missing pending resolution 139 - -
IV. Inventory 140 V.8 462.958.040,555 496.723.019.517
1.Inventory 141 466,336.845 305 500.471.603.835
2. Provision for inventory write-down 149 ~ (3.378.804.750) (3.748.584.318)
V. Other current assets 150 15.001.728.320 32.376.676.474
1. Short-term prepaid expenses 151 V.9a 1.627.625.069 2.530.704.098
2. Deductible VAT 152 10.527.394,033 26.247.612.865
3. Taxes and other amounts receivable 5 s 446 700,218 e
Homthe Siale 1 V. 2 ; : ' : ;
4. Government bond repurchase :
: 154 _ 5 s
transaction
5. Other current assets 155 - -



TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No, 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024
Consolidated balance sheet(next)

-

ASSET ' _

B. LONG-TERM ASSETS

L. Long-term receivables

1. Long-term receivables from customers
2. Long-term prepayment to seller

3. Business capital in affiliated units

4. Long-term internal receivables

5. Long-term loan receiyable

6. Other long-term receivables

7. Provision for doubtful long-term
receivables

II. Fixed assets

1, Tangible fixed assets

- Original price

- Accumulated depreciation value
2. Financial lease fixed assets

- Original price

- Accumutated depreciation value
3. Intangible fixed assets

- Original price

- Accumulated depreciation value
IIL, Investment real estate

- Original price

- Accumulated depreciation value
IV. Long-term unfinished assets
1. Long-term unfinished production and
business costs

2. Construction in progress cost

V. Long-term financial investment
1. Tnvestment in subsidiaries

2. Investment in joint ventures and
associates

3. Investing in other entities
4. Long-term financial investment reserve
5. Held to maturity investment

V1. Other long-term assets

1.Long-term prepaid expenses

2. Deferred income tax assets

3. Long-term replacement equipment, supj
4, Other long-term assets

TOTAL ASSETS

200

210
211
212
213
214
215
216

219

220
221
222
223

224

225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
240

241

242

250
251

232,

233
254
255

260
261
262
263
268
270

Code Explanation

V.5b
V.6b

V.10

V.11

V.12

V.13

V2

V.9b

Year-end number

v it e 4 4 A S A S

Beginning of year

number

VND VND
997.433.396.697 1.050.530.003.769
313.767.000 677.632.341
8(0.000.000 _
233.767.000 677.632.341
824.009.665.750 8$86.820.785.510

824.009,665.750
1.457.414.567.664
(633.404.901.914)

1.000.000.000
(1.000.000.000)
74.783.135.570
100.239.930.974
(25.456.795.404)

70.991.957.086

70.991.957.086

27.334.871.290
27.334.871.290

886.770.785.523
1.444.813.866.797
(558.043.081.274)

49,999 987
1.000.000.000
(950.000.013)

79.105.407.722
100.239.930.974
(21.134.523.252)
53.405.085.924

53.405.085.924
1.000.000.000

1.000.000.000

29.521.092.272
29.521.092.272

1.581.562.500.965

1.705.751.067.796




TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024
Consolidated balance sheet(next)

CAPITAL SOURCES

C. LIABILITIES

1. Short-term debt

1. Short-term trade payables

2. Short-term advance payment buyer
3. Taxes and other payments to the State
4. Payable to workers

5. Short-term payable expenses

6. Short-term internal payables

7. Payable according to construction
contract progress plan

8. Short-term unearned revenue

9. Other short-term payables

10. Short-term loans and finance leases
11. Short-term payables provision

12. Bonus and welfare fund

13. Price stabilization fund

14. Government bond repurchase
transaction

I1. Long-term debt

. Long-term trade payables

. Long term prepayment buyer

. Long-term payable expenses

. Internal payable on working capital
. Long-term internal payables

. Long-term unrealized revenue

. Other long-term payables

. Long-term loans and financial leases
9. Convertible bonds

10. Preferred stock

11. Deferred income tax liability

12. Long-term payables provision

13. Science and Technology
Development Fund

GO =1 O Lh B o R

Code

300

310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317

318
319
320
321
322
323
324

330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342

343

Explanation Year-end number Beginning of year
number

VND VND

816.992.432,225 937.776.251.063
440.125.993.270 511.558.220.189

V.14 80.540.125.086 81.709.391.503
V.16 5.558.851.857 7.905.545.723
V.15 4.577.101.531 6.261.336.263
8.327.078.588 11.723.376.446

V.17 8.081.882.549 5.936.664.261
V.18 6.542.570.215 647.637.277
V.19a 69.951.508.582 80.387.440.272
V.20a 251.678.166.250 312.118.119.832
2317.179.638 2317.179.638

V.21 2.551.528.974 2.551.528.974
376.866.438.955 426.218.030.874

V.19b 3.065.650.093 2.689.384 528
V.20b 364.497.718.492 376.419.627.327
V.22 9303.070.370 47.109.019.019

T
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TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024
Consolidated balance sheet(next)

CAPITAL SOURCES

D. OWNER'S EQUITY 400
1. Equity 410
1. Owner's equity 411
- Commion shares with voling rights 411a
- Preferred stock 411b
2. Capital surplus 412
3. Bond conversion option 413
4. Other owners' equity 414
5. Treasury stock 415
6. Asset revaluation difference 416
7. Exchange rate difference 417
8. Development investment fund 418
9. Enterprise Arrangement Support Fund 419
10. Other equity funds 420
11. Undistributed profit after tax 421
- Undistributed profit after tax
accumulated to the end of the previous 421a
period

Undistributed profit afier tax this o

period

12. Capital sources for basic construction 422

13. Nen-controlling interests 429
IL. Other funding sources and funds 430
1. Funding sources 431
2. Funding source for forming fixed 432
assets

TOTAL CAPITAL' 440

The chartist

M=

1.886.242 901

Explanation  Year-end number Beginning of year

number

VND VYND

764.570.068.740 767.974.816.734

V.23 759.864.320,791 761.256.326.997

300.000.000.000 300.000.000.000

300.000.000.000 300.000.000.000
70.190.665.888

235.822.094322  235.822.094.322

153.851.560.581 155.243.566.787

140.243.566.788 120.427.177.871

13.607.993.793 34.816.388.916

V.24 4.705.747.949 6.718.489.737

2.819.505.048 4.596.466.480

2.122.023.257

1.581.562.500.965

1,705.751.067.796

Duong Thi Mai Hue

Neuyen Nam Khanh

10

Nguyen Duy Hien

2



TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal ye-u- endmg DBecember 31, 2024

CONCLUS[VE BUSINESS PERFORMANCE REPORT
" For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024

provision

provision |

12, Other costs

expense

- _ Unit: VND
INDICATORS™ Code Explanation This year Last year
1. Sales and service revenue 01 483.049.215.328  522.796.154.747
2. Revenue deductions 02 _ 3.376.376.704 4.200.645.225
3. Net revenuc from sales and serviee 10 VL1 479.672.838.624  518,595.509.522
4. Cost of goods sold 11 V1.2 407.194.231.400  392.138.819.960
5. Gross profit from sales and service 20 72.478.607.224  126.456.689.562
6. Financial 0 per.umg revenue 21 VI3 248.229.170 1.570.726.231
T Fman{.:ml co Sts - . 22 V094 44.386.793.563 39.241.192.725
ln. w‘hmh lntcrcst expense 23 43.809.671.573 39.179.840.085
8. !?Lllmg RXpén%‘i '. ’ 25 VLS 22.183.870.345 23.984.972.861
9. Busmcss managemcnt Cl)'it'i 26 VL6 20.576.503.747 21.943.888.041
&
R 30
10. Net profit from husmess activities (14.420.331.261) 42.857.362.166
11. Other income 31 VI.7 37.124.030.668 2,173.935.578
32 VLS8 1.313.621.347 1.534.032.720
13. Other pl‘pfits 40 35.810.409.321 639.902.858
14. Total accounting profit before tax 50 21.390.078.060 43.497.265.024
15. Current corporate i 51 |
KRN Rpate GRS, S VLY 7.782.084.267  8.680.876.108
CI[)'E]'H(. i i \
16. Defcrred corporate mcumc tax 5 ' i
17. Profit after corporate income tax 60 13.607.993.793  34.816.388.916
18. Basic earnings per share - 70 VI1.10 454 1.161
19, Declining earnings per share 71 VL10 454 1.161
Established 29 on March 2025
The chartist Chief Accountant Manager
" "\II
/L b, —"
( o/
Duong Thi Mai Hue Nguyen Nam Khanh Nguyen Duy Hien
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TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal yeat endmg December 31, 2024

" 'CONCLUSIVE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(By direct method)
For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024

Unit: VND
INDICATORS Code Explanation This year Last year
Cash flow from operating activities
Revenue from sales of goods, provision
of services and other revenue 01 512.319.787.329 564.916.694,825
Paymenis to suppliors afgeods gnd. (279.838.248.006)  (387.463.700.553)
SCIviCcs
Money paid to workers 03 (52.254.502.561)  (67.472.554.889)
Interest paid 04 (43.955.243.404) (36.877.231.800)
Corporate income tax paid 05 (8.680.876.108) (22.687.909.825)
Other income from operating activities 06 5.797.957.156 23.490.169.955
Other expenses for business activities 07 (32.405.344.364) (40.358.449.485)
Net cash ati
e s e 20 102.983.530.042  33.547.018.228

activities

Cash flew from investing activities

Money spent on buying and building

assets fixed assets and other long-term 21 (28.585.520.464)
Proceeds from liquidation and salé of assets

fixed assets and other long-term assets 22 z
Money spent on lending, buying debt

(308.511.201.618)

117.500.000

instruments other units 23 (1.000.000.000) -
Proceeds from loan recovery, sale of

debt instruments of other units 24 8.472.313,886 27.551.862.784
Money spent on investment and 25

capital contribution to other units , ) )
Investment recovery, capital 2% ) )
contribution to other units

Interest income, dividends and profits 27 71.193.323 528.930.892
Net gash, flow from tepesing 30 (21.042.013.255)  (280.312.907.943)

activities
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IT1. Cash flow from financing activities

&

TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City,

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the [-IS'C:@_I year ending December 31, 2024

Consolidated cash flow statement(next)

Nghe An Province

" INDICATORS

capital contributions of the owner

Money returned to owners, purchasers

re-issued company shares

Proceeds from borrowing

Loan priticipal repayment

Leasé principal ré[jaymcnt

Dividends, pmﬁts»pald to-owners

Net® cﬂsfr ﬂ’gw ﬁam f inancing
-“"..' g oAtk

N_et tash ﬂa-w dum,lg the yeal

Cash and cash eqmvalents at the

begmmng of ‘the year

Impact of changes in exchange rates
foreign currency

Cash and cash equivalents at year
end

The chartist

T

Code Explanation

. Proceeds from issuing shares and receiving

31

32
33

34
35

36
40

50

60

61
70

This year

T i e et e S T

Last year

\ =

500.618.508.901
(560.580.371.318)

. (25.321.855.905)

846.381.792.356
(584.140.693.257)

(16.315.146.500)

(85.283.718.322)

245.925.952.599

(3.342.201.535)

V.1 13.232.983.266

(839.937.116)

14.072.920.382

va

9.890.781.731

13.232.983.266

Estabhshcd 29 on March 2025

Duong Thi Mai Hue

Nguycen Nam Khanh
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TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ending December 31,2024

44

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2024

CHARACTERISTICS OF COMPANY OPERATIONS
Form of capital ownership Joint Stock Company

Business Field . Construction materials production;
Civil and industrial construction;
Real cstate business./.

Business sector
The Company's main business lines include:

Production of building materials from clay

Details: Production of Granite tiles, ceramic tiles, tunnel tiles of all kinds

Site preparation

Road freight transport

Real estate business, land use rights owned, used or leased

Details: Housing, hotel, supermarket business

Architectural activitics and related technical consultancy

Details: Consulting on design, design review and cost estimates for civil (housing and public works),
industrial (manufacturing factories, auxiliary works, warchouses, dependent technical works),
agricultural (livestock farms, agricultural processing stations, agricultural warchouse stations).
Consulting on geological surveys of construction works Consulting on supervision of civil and
industrial construction works

Speaialized design activities

Details: des_igﬁ' consultancy, design review and cost estimates for civil works (houses and public
works), indu'stﬁal- works (factorics, auxiliary works, warchouses, dependent technical works),
agricultural works (livestock farms, agricultural processing stations, agricultural warehouse
stations), geological survey consultancy.

Motor Vehicle Rental

Details: Rent all kinds of motorbikes, tower cranes, self-propelled cranes, forklifts

Manufacture of concrete and products from concrete, cement and plaster

Details: Production of commercial concrete, precast concrete components, unburnt bricks, other
construction materials :

Renting of machinery, equipment and other tangible goods without operators. Details: Renting of
construction machinery and equipment

Production of large slab sintered stone./.

Normal production and business cycle:Within 12 months

14
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TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address; No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscil year ending December 31, 2024

Notes to the Finaneial Statementssynthetic (next)

5. Business structure:
Affiliated units! .
Unit name - Address
Trung Do Slab Stone Factory Hamlet 1, Nghi Van commune, Nghi Loc district,
3 "~ Nghe An province
Trung Do Granite Factory Dang Thai Mai Street, Bac Vinh Industrial Park, Vinh
Xuan Hamlet, Hung Dong Commune, Vinh City,
Nghe An Province.
Trung Do Nam Giang Enterprisc Hamlet 12, Nam Giang commune, Nam Dan district,
Nghe An province.
Trung Do Hoang Mai Enterprisc . Block 10, Hoang Mai town, Quynh Luu district, Nghe
: An province,
Trung Do | Enterprise No. 15, Cu Chinh Lan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh

City, Nghe An Province.

Trung Do Ha Tinh- Factory Branch — Trung Do Land plot number 538, map sheet number 13, Xuan

Joint Stock Company Son village, Bac Son commune, Thach Ha district, Ha
5 3 R : ; Tinh province.

Trung Do Joint ‘Stock Company Branch - No. 231, Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City.

Trung Do Construction Consulting Center Nghe An Province.

6. Statement on comparability of information in financial statements: The figures m the 2024
Consolidated Financial Statements are completely consistent and ensure comparability with the

]I. i

Consolidated Financial Statements figures.2023.

Staff

The company currently has 492 employees.

FISCAL YEAR, CURRENCY USED IN ACCOUNTING

- AR

1.  Fiscal year
The company's fiscal year begins on January 1 and ends on December 31 each year.

2. Currency used in accounting ,
The currency used in accounting is Vietnamese Dong (VND).

I.° ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND REGIMES APPLIED

1.  Applicable accounting regime
The Company applies accounting standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting Reginie issued
under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated December 22, 2014, Circular No. 53/2016/TT-BTC in
2016 amending and supplementing Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC as well as circulars guiding the
implementation of accounting standards of the Ministry of Finance in preparing Financial
Statements.

2.  Statement on compliance with accounting standards and accounting regimes

13



TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal.year ending December 31, 2024

Notes to the Fmam:ial Statementssynthetic (next)

IV.

The Board of Dircctors ensures that it has complied with the requirements of accounting standards
and, the Vmﬂmmege Enterprise . Accounting Regime issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated, Decemhcr 22, 2014, Circular No. 53/2016/TT-BTC in 2016 amending and supplcmcntmf:
Clrtular Ne: -200/2014/TT-BTC as well as circulars guiding the implementation of accounting
standards of; thc Ministry of Finance in preparing Financial Statements.

Apphca_ble a_ccountmg form
The company uses the general journal accounting method.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED

Basis for preparing consolidated financial statements

The corisolidated financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting (except for
information relating to cash flows).

Principles of recording cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand, demand bank deposits, monetary gold used for wvalue storage

functions, excluding gold classificd as inventories used for the purpose of raw materials to produce
products or goods for sale.

Cash cquivalents are short-term investments with a maturity of no more than three months from the
date of purchase, which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate on the transaction date.
Balances of foreign currency monetary items at the closing datefiscal yearconverted at the
exchange rate on this date.

Exchange rate differences arising during the year from foreign currency transactions are recorded
in financial income or financial expenses. Exchange rate differences due to revaluation of foreign
Gll]'l'&i'l.b}; monetary items at the end of the yearfiscal yearAfter offsetting the increase and decrease,
the difference is recorded in financial income or financial expenses.

The exchange rate used to convert transactions in foreign currency is the actual exchange rate at the
time of the transaction. The actual exchange rate for transactions in foreign currency is determined
as follows:

o Actual exchange rate when buying and selling foreign currencies (spot foreign currency
contracts, forward contracts, futures contracts, options contracts, swap contracts): exchange
rate signed in foreign currency buying and selling contracts between the Enterprisc and the
bank.

e Ifthe contract does not specify a payment rate:

- For capital contributions or capital receipts: foreign currency buying rate of the bank where
the Enterprisc opens an account to receive capital from investors on the date of capital
contribution. |

- For receivables: the buying rate of the commercial bank where the Enterprise designates
the customer to make payment at the time the transaction occurs.

16
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TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024

Notes to ihe Financial Statementssynthetic (next)

T T ———

© - “Fos 'ﬁayables: selling rate of the commercial bank where the Enterprise plans to transact at
" the iiil}gé the transaction occurs.
- " Forasset purchases or expenses paid immediately in foreign currency (not through payable
accounts); the buying rate of the commercial bank where the Enterprise makes the
payvment.

The exchange rate used to re-cvaluate the balance of foreign currency monetary items at the end of

the fiscal year is determined according to the following principles:

e For foreign currency deposits at banks: forcign currency buying rate of the bank where the
Enterprise opens a foreign éurrency account.

e For foreign currency items classified as other assets: foreign currency buying rate of
Vietcombank (Corporate Bank with regular transactions).

e For foreign currency items classified as liabilities: foreign currency sclling rate of
Vietcombank (the Bank where the Enterprise regularly transacts).

Principles of accounting for financial investments
Held to maturity investments

An investment is classified as held-to-maturity whenBusinessHeld-to-maturity investments
include: term deposits (including treasury bills and promissory notes), bonds, prefercnce shares
that the issuer must redeem at a specified time in the future, loans held to maturity for the purpose
of earning periodic interest, and other held-to-maturity investments.

Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognized at cost, which includes the purchase price and
any costs associated with the transaction of purchasing the investments. After initial recognition,
these investments arc recognized at their recoverable amount. Interest income from held-to-
maturity investments after the acquisition date is recognized in the Statement of Income on an
acerual basis. Interest earned beforeBusinessholdings are written off from cost at the time of
purchase.

When there is strong evidence that part or all of an investment may not be recovered and the
amount of loss cain be reliably determined, the loss is recorded in financial expenses in the year and
the investment vahe is directly deducted.

Loans

Loans are measured at cost less allowance for doubtful debts, Allowance for doubtful debts on
loans is made based on the expected level of loss that may occur,

Principles of accounting for receivables
The itemsnReceivables are stated at carrying amount less allowance for doubtful debts.

The classification of receivables as trade receivables, internal receivables and other recervables 1s
carried out according to the following principles:

17
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TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024

Notes to the: Financial Statementssynthetic (next)

o Trade ieceivables reflect commercial receivables arising from purchasc-sale transactions
- béfWe_énQﬁ;hpanyand the buyer is an independent entity withCompany, including reccivables
for ci;}_i_drt's'ales on consignment to other entities.
° Inten}ai'.-réi‘:ciy,'ablcs reflect receivables from affiliated units without legal entity status that are
dependent on accounting,
e Other receivables reflect non-commercial receivables not related to purchase and sale
transactions.
Provision for doubtful debts is made for each doubtful debt based on the age of overduc debts or
the expected level of loss that may occur, specifically as follows:
e For ovc;lzl';lge receivables:
3'(}%70._1‘ the value for overdue receivables from more than 6 months to less than 1 year;
50% of the value for receivables overdue from 1 year to less than 2 vears;
= 70% of the value for receivables overdue from 2 years to less than 3 years;
100%, of the value for receivables overdue for 3 years or more.
e For receivables that are not overdue but arc unlikely to be recovered: establish provisions
based on expected loss level.

Inventory
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

The cost of inventories is determined as follows:

« NoriginalMaterials, goods: include costs of purchase and other directly relevant costs incurred
in bringing the inventorics to their present location and condition.

e Finished products; include costs of raw materials, direct labor and related general production
costs allocated based on normal operating levels, land use rights costs, direct costs and related
general costs incurred during the investment process of constructing finished real estate
products.. '

o CWork in progress: includes onlymain raw material cost (or other cost element as appropriate).

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price of inventory in the normal course of
business.normal less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

The cost of inventories is calculated using the first-in, first-out method and is accounted for using
the perpetual inventory method.

Provision for inventory decline is made for each inventory item whose cost 1s greater than its net
realizable value.For unfinished services, provision for price reduction is caleulated for each type of
service with separate price.Increase, decrease inventory price reduction reserve balanceneed to set
asideat the end of the financial year is recognized in cost of goods sold.
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TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024

Notes to the Financial Statementssynthetic (next)

6.

Pl'epa{a exi)enseé

Prepald Bxiaens&e include actual cxpenses that have been incurred but are related to the business
perfonna:nce of many accounting periods. The Company's prepaid expenses include the following
cxpenses: '

Tools, instruments

TheTools and equipment put into use are allocated to expenses by the straight-line method with an
allocation period of no more than 03 years.

Mineral exploitation rights licensing fees

Mineral exploitation rights licensing feesis allocated to expenses using the straight-line method over
the term of the mineral exploitation license.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumu]atnd depreciation. The cost of tangible fixed
assets includes all costs incurred by the Company to acquire tangible fixed assets up to the date
when the assct is ready for use. Expenditures incurred after initial recognition are only recorded as
an increase in the cost of tangible fixed asscts if it is certain that these costs will increase future
economic benefits from the use of the asset. Expenditures that do not satisfy the above conditions
are recorded immediately as expenses.

When tangible fixed assets are sold or disposed of, their cost and accumulated depreciation are
climinated from the accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is included in
income or cxpenses for the year.

Tangible fixcd assets arc depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives.For machinery and equipment of Van Yen cassava project, line 2 applies the depreciation
method based on output, the design capacity of the project is 110,000 tons of products (100 tons of
products/day, production 100 days/year and implementation within 11 years).

The depreciation years of the types of tangible fixed assets are as follows:

Type of fixed asset No. 5
Houses, buildings 10 - 25
Machinery and equipment 5-20
Means of transport, transmission 6- 10
Management equipment and tools 3-10
Other fixed assets 3-10

Intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

The original cost of intangible fixed assets includes all costs incurred by the Enterprisc to acquire
the fixed assets up to the time the asset is ready for use. Expenses related to intangible fixed assets
arising after initial recognition are recorded as production and busincss expenses in the period
unless these expenses are associated with a specific intangible fixed asset and increase the
economic benefits from these assets.
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TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024

Notes to the Financial Statementssynthetic (next)

. J.' !

When infangible fixed assets are sold or disposed of, their cost and accumulated depreciation are
eliminated from the accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is recognized as
income or expense in the year.

Intangible fixed assets of the Enterprise include:

Brand value

The Company's brand value is determined according to the appraisal report on determining the
enterpris¢ value for cquitization as of December 31, 2004, approved by the Minister of
Cons_truction: ‘on September 20, 2005. The Company depreciates the brand value with a
dcprdcfatim _period of 20 years.

lnvestment T eal estate

Investrient .propcrty is the right to use land, house, part of house or infrastructure owned by the
En];crpnse dr ﬁnanca leased for the purpose of earning income from renting or waiting for capital
apprecla‘uon Invest:mcnt property is stated at original cost less accumulated depreciation. The
or:gma,t tost. Uf.mvestment property is the total cost that the Enterprise has to pay or the fair valuc
of the cmisldarauon given to acquire the investment property up to the time of purchasc or
completion of construction.

Expenditures related to investment real estate incurred after initial recognition are recorded as
expenses, unless these expenses are likely to make the mvestment real estate generate more
economic benefits in the future than the initially assessed level of performance, then they are
recorded as an ingrease in original cost.

When investment property is sold, its cost and accumulated depreciation are written off and any
resulting gain or loss is recognized as income or expense for the year.

Transfers from owner-occupied property or inventories to investment property occur only when the
owner stops using the property and begins operating leases to others or at the end of the
construction phase. Transfers from investment property to owner-occupied property or inventories
occur only when the owner starts using the property or develops it with a view to sclling it.
Transfers from investment property to owner-occupied property or inventories do not change the
cost or carrying amount of the property at the date of transfer.

Investment propertics used for rental purposes are depreciated using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives, YearsDepreciation of investment property is as follows:

Type of fixed asset No. 5
Infrastructure 25

Construction in progress cost

Construction in progress reflects directly related costs (includingincluding related interest costsin
accordance with the Company's accounting policies) to cAssets under construction, machinery and
equipment being installed for production, leasing and management purposes as well as costs
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TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 205 Le Dyan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024

Notes to the Fmanclai Statementssynthetic (next)

10.

11.

12.

e T O DT TR s

rclate.fi {g rcpalrs of fixed assets in progress. These asscts are recorded at ongmal cost andnot
depremated '

Business cooperation contract

Jointly controlled business activities

BusinessRecord in the Financial Statements the following business cooperation contracts in the
form of jointly controlled business activities:

» The value of the property thatBusinesscurrently owned.

e Liabilities thatBusinessmust bear .

e Products are shared from business cooperation activitics.

e  The costs incurred. '

When receiving money or assets contributed by other parties to BCC activities, the recipient must
account for them as liabilities and not record them in equity.

My, =Ty Aw

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Liabilities and accruals arc recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services
received. Accruals are recognized based on reasonable estimates of the amounts to be paid.

The classification of payables as trade payables, accrued expenses, internal payables and other
payables is carried out according to the following principles:

v -y

o Trade payables reflect commercial payables arising from transactions of purchasing goods,
services, assets and the seller is an independent entlty Business, including amounts payable
upon import through a consignee.

e Payable expenses reflect amounts payable for goods and services received from sellers or
provided to buyers but not yet paid due to lack of invoices or insufficient accounting records
and documents, and amounts payable to employees for leave wages, production and business
expenses that must be accrued in advance.

e Internal payables reflect payables between a parent unit and a subordinate unit without legal
entity status that is dependent on accounting.

o  Other payables reflect non-commercial payables not related to the purchase, sale or provision
of goods and services.

Provisions for payables

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

If the effect of the passage of time is material, provisions are detcrmined by discounting the
expected future cash outflows required to scttle the obligation at a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance expense.

Principles of recording loans and financial lease liabilities

The company must monitor in detail the payment terms of loans and financial lcases. For loans
with a repayment period of more than 12 months from the date of the financial statements,
accountants present them as long-term loans and financial leases. For loans due within the next 12
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TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
CONSOLIRATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024

Notes to the Fmancul St.wcmcntssynthctlc (next)

13.

months from: the datg of the financial statements, accountants present them as short-term loans and
fihanoial lfaases fo have a payment plan.

For fin nance lcase 11ab111tlcs the total lease liability mﬂcctcd on the credit side of the Loan and
Finance Lease Liabilities account is the total amount payable calculated as the present value of the
minimum lease payments or the fair value of the leased asset.

Loans and debts in foreign currency must be converted into accounting currency at the actual
transaction exchange rate at the time of occurrence:

- When. paying debts and borrowing in foreign currency, the Debit side of the Loan account and
financial lsase debt are converted according to the actual accounting exchange ratc for each
subject :

- When- prcparmg the Financial Statements, the balance of loans and financial leases in foreign
currencies must be re-¢valuated at the actual transaction exchange rate at the time of preparing the
Fmauc:al Statements;

- Exclaange rate differences ammg from the payment and year-end revaluation of loans and
financial lcases in ‘foreign currencies are recorded in financial revenue or expenses.

Science and Technology Development Fund
Fundrelease developScience. and technology was established to create financial resources for
investment in science and technology activitics.as follows:
e Provide funding to implement thescience and technology topics and projects.
e Support for science and technology development:
- Providing facilities and techniques for scientific and technological activitics.

Purchase machinery and equipment to innovate technology directly used in product
manufacturing,.

Purchase of technology copyrights, usage rights, ownership rights of inventions, utility
solutions, indusirial designs, scientific and technological information, documents and
related products to serve scientific and technological activities.

Pay salarics, hire experts or contract with scientific and technological organizations to carry
out scientific and technological activities.

Costs for training scientific and technological human resources according to regulations of
law on sciencé and technology.

Expenditure on technical innovation and production rationalization activities.

Costs for scientific and technological research and development cooperation activities with
Vietnamese organizations and enterprises.

Fixed assets formed from the fundrelease developScience and technology are recorded as a

reduction in the corresponding fund and are not subject to depreciation.

Fund provision levelrelcase developScience and technology expenditure is equal to 10% of taxable
income in the year according to the organization and operation charter of the fund and is accounted
for in expenses. If during the year, expenditure for science and technology activities excecds the
current balance in the fund, the excess expenditure will be taken from the fund allocation of the
following years and accounted for in expenses or allocated to the following years.
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TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024

Notes to the Findncial Statementssynthetic (next)

4.

Equity e - \: »
Ownei's equiity
Owner's equity is recorded at the actual amount invested by shareholders.

Share capit::;rf ‘surplus

Share capital surplus is recorded as the difference between the issue price and the par value of
shares when first issued, additional issued or the difference between the reissue price and the book
value of treasury shares. Direct costs related to the additional issuance of shares and reissuance of
treasury shares are recorded as a decrease in share capital surplus.

Other funds :
Funds are set aside and used in accordance with the Company Charter and the Resolution of the
Annual Shareholders' Meeting.

Profit Distribution

Profit after corporate income tax is distributed to shareholders after setting aside funds according to
the Company's Charter Companyas well as the provisions of law and approved by thc General
Meeting of Sharcholders. '

The distribution of profits to shareholders takes into account non-cash items included in retained
earnings that may affect cash flows and the ability to pay dividends. Uh Gains from revaluation of
asscts contributcd as capital, gains from revaluation of monetary items, financial instruments and
other non-mongtary items.

Dividends are recognized as liabilities when approved by the General Mecting of Shareholders.

Revenue and income recognition
Revenue from sales of goods and finished products

Revenue from sales of goods and finished products is recognized when all of the following

conditions are simultancously satisfied: _

e The company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
products or goods. |

e The Company no longer holds title to the goods or control over the goods.

e Revenue is determined with relative certainty, When the contract stipulates that the buyer has
the right to return the purchased products or goods under specific conditions, revenue is only
recognized when those specific conditions no longer exist and the buyer is not entitled to return
the products or -gobds (except in cases where the customer has the right to return the goods in
exchange for other goods or services).

e The Company has obtained or will obtain economic benefits associated with the sale
transaction,

o Identify the costs associated with a sales transaction,

Service revenue
Revenue from a service transaction is recognized when the outcome of the transaction can be

measured reliably. In cascs where the sorvice is performed over several periods, revenue is
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S T ]

recogmz,ed in cach period based on the results of the work completcd at the end date.accounting

perlod K’i’ha outéomé of a service transaction is determined when all of the following conditions

are satlsﬁc:c!.

e Revenue is'measured rcliably. When a contract provides that the buyer has the right to return
the services purchased under specific conditions, revenue is recognized only when the specific
conditions no longer exist and the buyer has no right to return the services provided.

e It is possible to obtain economic benefits from the transaction of providing that service.

e Determine the portion of work completed by the end datefiscal year

o Identify the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction to
provide that service.

Real estate sales revenue
Real estatg sales revenueBus inessAn investor is recognized when all of the following conditions [
arc simultancously satisfied: ; ll
e The real estate has been fully completed and handed over to the buyer, the enterprisc has ]
transferred the risks and benefits associated with the ownership of the real estate to the buyer, -
o The enterprise no longer holds the right to manage the real estate as the real estate owner or the
right to control the real estate. .
e Revenue is determined with relative certainty.
e The enterprise has obtained or will obtain economic benefits from the real estate sale
transaction.
o Identify the costs associated with a rcal estate transaction,

b
Interest
Interest is recognized on an accrual basis, determined on the balance of deposit accounts.and actual
intercst rate each period.

7.  Accounting principles for revenue deductions
Sales deductions include: Trade discounts, sales allowances and sales returns.

Trade discounts, sales discounts, and sales returns arising in the same period of product, goods, and
service consumption are adjusted to reduce revenue of the period.

- In case products, goods and services have been consumed in previous periods, and trade
discounts, sales discounts or returned goods arise in the following period, the Company is allowed
to reduce revenue according to the following principles:

+ If products, goods, and services have been consumed in previous periods, and must be
discounted, discounted, or returned in the next period but occur before the issuance of the Financial
Statement, the accountant must consider this an event that requires adjustment occurring after the
date of the Balance Sheet and record a reduction in revenue on the Financial Statement of the
reporting period (previous period).

+ In casc products poods, and services must be discounted, have trade discounts, or arc returned
after the issuance of the' Financial Statement, the Company will record a reductmn in revenue for
the period in” ‘which they arise (the following permd)
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8.

10.

11.

12.

Principles of accounting for cost of goods sold.
Cost of goods sold during the year is recorded in accordance with revenue generated during the
period and ensures compliance with the principle of prudence.

For direct material costs consumed in excess of normal levels, labor costs, and fixed general
manufacturing costs not allocated to the value of products in stock, accountants must immediately
calculate them into the cost of goods sold (after deducting compensation, if any), even when the
products and goods have not been determined to be consumed.

The provision for inventory price decline is included in the cost of goods sold based on the
quantity of inventory and the difference between the net realizable value being less than the
original cost of inventory. When determining the volume of inventory with price decline requiring
provision, the accountant must exclude the volume of inventory for which a sales contract has been
signed (with a net realizable value not lower than the book value) but has not been transferred to
the customer if there is certain cvidence that the customer will not abandon the contract.

Principles of financial cost accounting

Reflects financial operating expenses including expenses or losses related to financial investment
activities, lending and borrowing costs, costs of contributing capital to joint ventures and
associations, short-term securitics transfer losses, securities transaction costs; Provision for
devaluation of trading securities, provision for investment losses in other entitics, losses arising
from selling foreign currencics, exchange rate losses...

Principles of accounting for sales costs and business management costs

Selling expenses reflect actual costs incurred in the process of selling products, goods, and
providing services, including costs of offering, introducing products, advertising products, sales
commissions, product and goods warranty costs (except construction activitics), preservation,
packaging, transportation costs, etc.

Business management costs reflect the general management costs of the Company, including costs
for salaries of employees in the business management department (salaries, wages, allowances,
etc.); social insurance, health insurance, union fees, unemployment insurance for business
management employees; costs of office materials, labor tools, depreciation of fixed assets used for
business management; land rent, business license tax; provision for bad debts; outsourced services
(electricity, water, telephone, fax, property insurance, fire and explosion insurance, etc.); other cash
expenses (reception, customer conferences, etc.).

Principles and methods of recording current corporate income tax expenses

Current corporate income tax expense

Corporate income tax expense is current income tax, calculated on taxable income. Taxable income
differs from accounting profit due to adjustments for temporary differences between tax and
accounting, non-deductible expenses as well as adjustments for non-taxable income and losses
carried forward.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or excreise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Partics are
also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common significant
influence.

In considering any related party relationship, attention is directed more to the substance of the
relationship than to the legal form.

Transactions with related parties are disclosed in VIIIL. 1
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V.

1.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS PRESENTED IN THE CONSOLIDATED
BALANCE SHEET

Cash and cash equivalents

Year-end number Beginning of year
number
VND ' VND
Cash 1.060.381.941 894.780.3061
Non-term bank deposits 8.830.399.790 12.338.202.905
Add 9.890.781.731 13.232.983.266
" Held to maturity investment
Year-end number Beginning of year number
Original price  Preventive  Original price  Preventive
VND VND VND VND
Short term 1.000.000.060 -  7.462.313.8806 -
Deposit at Orient Commercial
Joirtt Stock Bank - - 7462.313.886
Deposit at Joint Stock
Commercial Bank for Foreign 1.000.000.000 - - -
Trade of Vietnam
Long term - 1.000.000.000
Bonds of Joint Stock Commercial
Bank for Foreign Trade of - - 1.000.000.000 -
Vietnam
Add 1.000.000.000 - 8.462.313.886 -

(*) The deposit at Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade of Vietnam is being used as
collateral for the loan at Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Forcign Trade of Vietnam - Vinh City
Branch.

. Short-term trade receivables

Year-end number  Beginning of year

number

VND VND

Taseco Real Estate Investment Jomnt Stock Company 9.257.972.164 0,257.972.164
Vi Nang Company Limited 8.064.532.003 9.230.005,325
Other customers 80.600.356,084 88.314.097.397
Add 97.922.860.251 106.802.074.886

The right to claim debt for receivables formed from loans of Vietnam Joint Stock Comimercial
Bank for Industry and Trade - Vinh City Branch is mortgaged to secure loans at Vietnam Joint
Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade - Vinh City Branch. The right to claim debt for
receivables formed from loans of Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade - Nghe
An Branch is mortgaged to secure loans at Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign
Trade - Nghe An Branch.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024
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4.

Short-term seller advance

Sacmi Singapore Pte Ltd
Sacmi Hongkong Litd

Hoang Kim Advertising Design and Information

Technology Company Limited

Hongkong Shingle Co., Limited
Other objects
Add

~ Short-term loan receivable

a)

a) Short term

Lend to Mr. Bien Van Luan
Add

b) Long term

Lend to Mr. Bien Van Luan
Add

Other receivables
Short term

Receivable from related parties
Advance to relevant member

Receivables from other
organizations and individuals
Advance

Bet, deposit

Interest on accrued deposits
Other receivables

Add

Year-end number

Beginning of year

number

VND VND
5.413.149 84.807.141
646.100.437 646.100.437

663.416.880 1.169.909.240

- 520,978.227
4.580.963.679 5.141.623.285
5.895.894.145 7.563.418.330

Year-end number

Beginning of year
number

VND

VND
90.000.000

90.000.000

Year-end number

Beginning of year

number

VND VND
§0.000.000 -
80.000.000 -

Year-end Number

Beginning number of the year

Value Preventive Value Preventive

VND VND VND VND
253.278.000 & 253.278.000 2
253,278,000 - 253.278.000 &
10.222.381.373 E 9.334.889.976 -

2.601.306.515
2.421.092.341

5.199.982.517

2.460.419.852 -
1.942.595.000 .

41.983.883 =
4.889.891.241 .

10.475.659.373

9.588.167.976 -
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a)

b)

b) Long term

64.677.380.551
1.393.953.066

109.086.362.693

289.960.397.729
1.218.360.526

Raw materials
Tools, instruments

Work in progress

Finished product
Goods

(3.378.804.750)

- - 73.987.340.596
- 1.561.988,281

- 140.481.255.623

283.910.082,392

- 530.,936.943

Long term
Year-end Number Beginning number of the vear
Value Preventive Value _ Preventive
VND VND VND VYND
Bet, deposit 233.767.000 - 677.632.341 -
Add 233.767.000 - 677.632.341 -
Bad debt
Details of bad debts are presented in Appendix 1 (page 59).
Inventory
Year-end number Beginning of year number
Onriginal price Preventive Original price Preventive
VND VND VIND

VND

(3.748.584.318)

Add

these banks.
Prepaid expenses
Short-term prepaid expenses

Export tools and equipment
Add

Long-term prepaid expenses

Compensation and site clearance costs

Fee for granting rights to exploit clay minerals as
raw materials at Tan Ky and Tan Hop Projects

Export tools and equipment
Mineral exploitation rights licensing fees
Add

28

466.336.845.305 (3.378.804.750)

The entire value of the Company's circulating inventory s formed from borrowed capital atloint
Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade of Vietnam - Vinh branch and Joint Stock
Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade of Vietnam - Nghe An branchmortgaged to secure loans at

500.471.603.835

(3.748.584.318)

Year-end number

Beginning of year
number

VND
1.627.625.069

VND
2.530.704.098

1.627.625.069

2.530.704.098

Year-end number

Beginning of year

number

VND VND
14.893.397.8606 15.239 086.018
27.298.762 27.298.762
2.974.526,927 3.881.318.910
9.439.647.735 10,373,388.582

27.334.871.290

29.521.092.272
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TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024

Notes to the Financial Statementssynthetic (next)

16.

17

18.

19.

~ Short-term advance payment buyer

Tuan Hong Phu Tho Trading Company Limited
Mr. Le Huu Hong

Hoa Hiep Company Limited

Mr. Hoang Cong Phuc

Other customers

Add

Short-term payable expenses

Year-end number

Beginning of year

number

VND

453.820.600
1.500.000.000
410.646
3.604.620.611

YND
249,523,200
453.820.600
1.500.000.000
2.657.963.830
3.044.238.093

5.558.851.857

e

Year-end number

7.905.545,723

Beginning of year

number

Interest expense payable

Provisional calculation of service performance
value according to contract number 0207 PNIX
Phoenix Joint Stock Company

Payables for Nghi Van project according to data
from Planning Departiment

Other short-term payable expenses

VND
4.055.770.307

1.604.036,751

VND
3.514.588.770

2.421.940.491 2.421.940.491
135.000 135.000
8.081.882.549 3.936.664.261

Short-term unearned revenue

Is revenue received in advance for office rent at the Company's real estate projects.

Other payables
a.Other short-term payables

Payable to related party

Hanoi Construction Corporation - JSC

- Principal payable

- Interest payable

- Dividends payable

- Excess settlement money

Payable to other entities and individuals

Union dues

Maintenance cost of CT21-Trungdo Tower apariment
building

Social insurance

Dividends payable

Other short-term payables

Payable to Taseco Real Estate Investment Joint Stock
Company for capital contribution to the N0O3-T6
apartment project awailing settlement

b. Other long-term payables

Year-end Number

Beginning number

of the year

VND
24.777.910. 753
24.777.910.753
3.116.000.000
6.962.727. 417
14.625.183.336
74.000.000
43.173.597.829
3.248.018.315

4.309.302.110

585.913.380
11.445 872.146

3.235.608.340

22.348 883,538

VND
18.733.846.753
18.733.846,753
3.116.000.000
0.962. 727 417
8.581.119.336
74.000.000
61.653.593.519
2.694.535.025

4.381.536.169

29.144.521.309
3.143.117.959

22.289.883.057

69,951,508,582

80.387.440.272

Are deposits and long-term deposits received from office tenants.
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TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Mo. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024

Notes to the Financial Statementssynthetic (next)

22,

Science and Technology Development Fund

Science and

Technology Add
Development Fund
VND VND
Beginning of year number 47.109.019,019 47.109.019.019
Fund allocation during the year 3.764.012.266 3.764.012.266
Increase residual value income to serve science
and technology transfer to production and (36,251.865.930) (36.251,865.936)

business

Depreciation of fixed assets formed from science

and technology development fund (360,300,028

Science and technology rescarch and

development expenses HLEH004. 9500

(3.620.560,029)

(1.697.534.950)

Year-end number 9.303.070.370

9,303.070.369

The Company will supplement the Science and Technology Development Fund in 2024 with a
provision rate of 10% of pre-tax profit according toDecision No. 40/QD-HDQT dated month year

2024 of the Board of Directors.

During the year, the Company spent the Science and Technology Development Fund to carry out
the national scientific research project "Rescarch on mastering and developing advanced
technology in the production of high-quality, large-sized artificial stone panels with a capacity of
3.5 million m2/year" according to Decision No. 977/QD-BKHCN dated April 27, 2021 of the

Ministry of Science and Technology.

According to the contract for the implementation of scientific and technological tasks dated July
13, 2021 (under the national technology innovation program until 2030), the total budget for the

implementation of the task is 144 billion VND.
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TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024

Notes to the Financial Statementssynthetic(nexf)

b)

b) Stocks

- Number of shares registered for issuance

Number of sharcs issued/sold to the public
- Common stock

- Preferred stock

Number of shares bought back

- Common stock

- Preferred stock

Number of shares outstanding

- Common stock

- Preferred stock

Outstanding share value:10,000 VND.

¢ Profit distribution

Beginning of year

Year-end number number
30.000.000 30.000.000
30,000,000 30.000.000
30.000.000 30.000.000
30,000,000 30.000.000
30.000.000 30.000.000

During the year, the Company distributed profits according to Resolution of the Board of Directors

dated June 6, 2024 as follows:

e 2023 dividend payment in cash: 5% of par value of shares.

Other funding and funds
Funding sources

Beginning of year number
Funding provided

Career expenses during the year
Year-end number

Funding source for forming fixed assets

Beginning of year number

Source of funding for carcer formation of
fixed assets

Depreciation of fixed assets formed from
career funding sources

Year-end number

(2.567.742.100)

This vear Last year
VND VND
4.596,466.480 (176.375.520)
790.780.668 5.400.000.000

(627.158.000)

2.122.023.257

(235.780.356)

2.819.505.048 4.596.466.480
This year Last year
VND VND

2.357.803.613

(235,780.356)

1.886.242.901

2.122.023.257

This is a source of funding provided by the Ministry of Science and Technology from the State
budget to carry out the scientific rescarch task code DM.54.DN/21: "Research to master and
develop advanced technology in the production of high-quality, large-sized artificial stone panels,
capacity of 3.5 million m2/year" according to Decision No. 977/QD-BKHCN dated April 27, 2021
of the Ministry of Science and Technology on approving the host organization, the host individual,
funding, method of allocation and implementation time of the national science and technology task

under the national technology innovation program until 2030, starting in 2021,
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TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024

Notes to the Financial Statcmentssynthetic (next)

25.

Off-Balance Sheet Items

a, Foreign currencies of all kinds

VL.

1.

US Dollar (USD)
Euro (EUR)

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS PRESENTED IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF INCOME

Sales revenue

Total revenue

Revenue from sales of goods and finished

products

Service revenue

Real estate business revenue
Other revenue

Revenue deductions
Returned goods

Trade discount

Sales Discount

Net revenue from sales and services

Cost of goods sold

Cost of goods and finished goods sold
Cosl of services provided

Cost of capital of real estate business
Cosl of other activities

Add

Financial revenue

Interest on deposits and loans
Bond interest

Exchange rate difference profit
Reduce acerued interest at OCB
Add

Year-end Beginning of year
number number
533.25 626.75
100.00 100.00

This year Last year
VND VND
483.049.215.328 522.796.154. 747

387.471.618.194

17.181.674.266
76.928.055.169
1.467.867.699
(3.376.370, 704)
(1.938.834.242)
(231.807.912)
(1.205.734.550)

405.160.035,000

17.009.800.708
99.698.253.691
928.065.348
(4.200.645.225)
(1.837.404.680)
(796.602.273)
(1.566.638.272)

479.672.838.624 518.595.509,522
This year Last year
VND VND

360.472.783.002
12.517.494.225
32.126.469.586
2.077.484.587

325.424.433.765
11,653.665.319
53.748.325.564
1.312.395.312

407.194.231,400

392.138.819.960

This year Last year
VND VND
11.542.374 1.437,078.153
59.071.918 112.750.000
219.019.108 20.898.078
(41.404.230) -
248.229.170 1.570.726.231
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TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address; No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024
Notes to the Financial Statementssynthetic (next)

44

Financial costs

Interest expense

Exchange raie difference
Add

Cost of sales

Cost of raw materials

Labor costs ;

Cost of tools, equipment, supplies
Fixed asset depreciation cosls
Qutsourcing service costs

Other expenses in cash

Add

~ Business management costs

Labor costs

Taxes, fees and charges

Fixed asset depreciation costs
Provision Expense/Provision Reversal

Provision for science and technology development
fund

Outsourcing service costs
Other expenses in cash

Add

Other income

Revenue from sale and liquidation of fixed assets
Collect fines for breach of contract

Surplus materials due to inventory

Increase residual value income to serve science and
technology transfer to production and business

Other income
Add

46

This year Last year
VND VND
43.809.671.573 39.179.840.085
577.121.990 61.352.640

44.386.793.563

39.241.192.725

This year Last Year
VND VND
743.452.566 879.033.350
3.449.732.214 3.477.347.459
28,061,952 25.347.594
1.408.834.342 860.806.427

8.647.904.337
7.905.884.934

9.620.285.265
9.122.152.766

22.183.870.345

23.984.972.861

This year

Last Year

VND
7.472.746.089
4,555.883.880

398.443.483
398.269.798

3.764.012.2606

VND
7.547.864.556
4.141.459.958

833.348.093
171.447.605

4.822,.708.949

960,239.470 1.926.602. 138
3.026.908.761 2.500.456.742
20.576.503.747 21.943.888.041
This year Last year
VND VND

- 108.796.295

3.673.100 62.004,290
518.568.494 1.460.520.746

36.251.865.936

349.923.138

542.614.247

37.124.030.668

2.173.935.578
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TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024
Notes to the Financial Statementssynthetic (next)

8. - Other costs

Late tax payment penalty, tax collection
Donations
Small debt

Payment of treatment costs and compensation

for occupational accidents
Other penaltics

Write-off of fixed assets due to chimney fire

Other costs

Loss from liquidation of 1500KvA-35/0.4kV

transformer at Trung Do Ha Tinh Plant

according to the liquidation decision dated

February 1, 2024 (afier offsetting other income

and other expenses)
Add
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This year Last year
VND VYND
832.897.730 223.462.386
3.780.000 -
25,695.165 4
61.336.764 :
238.778.239 182,834,595
- 863.243.150

- 264,492,589
151.133.449 2
1,313.621.347 1.534.032.720




TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024

Notes to the Financial Statementssynthetic (next)

9,  Current corporate income tax expense

Corporate income tax payable during the year is calculated as follows:

This Year

Last Year

Corporate income tax from main business activities
Total accounting profit before corporate income tax
Incremental adjustments
- Depreciation cost of original car over 1.6
billion
= Write off irrecoverable debt
- Fines for administrative violations and
- Provision for receivables with
insufficient documentation

- Support organizations
- Interest expense eliminated due to related
party transaclions

Adjustments for reduction

= Deferred profits arise

Taxable income
Tax rate

(17.640.844.954)
12.486.032.332

5.062.614
1.053.167.092

60.000.000

11.367.802.626

(5.154.812.622)
20%

5.010.313.257
504.918.207

98.621.226

400.296.981

5.515.231.464
20%

Corporate income tax payable from main
business activities

1.103. 0406, 293

Corporate income tax from real estate business activities

Total accounting profit from real estate business
before corporate income tax

Incremental adjustinents
Adjustments for reduction

- Deferred profils arise
Taxable income
Tax rate 20%

39.030.923.014

-

38.486.951.767

Corporate income tax payable from real estate
business activities

Total corporate income tax payable at the end of the

Basic/diluted earnings per share

Accounting profit after corporate income fax

Earnings per share

Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the year

Basic earnings per share decline

48

120.501.677 597.802.694
120.501.677 397.802.694
38.910.421,337 37.889.149.073
20% 20%
7.782.084.267 7.577.829.815
7.782.084.267 8.680.876.108
This year Last year

13.607.993.793
13.607.993.793

30.000.000

34.816.388.916
34.816.388.916

30.000.000
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TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024

Notes to the Financial Statementssynthetic (next)

The average outstanding common shares during the year are calculated as follows:

This year Last year
Common shares outstanding at the beginning of the
year 30,000,000 30,000,000
Average common shares outstanding during the
year 30,000,000 30,000,000
11. Cost of production by factor
This year Last vear
VND VND
Cosl of raw materials 246.087.521.016 415.261.145.087
Labor costs 48.168.763.000 28.020.264.793
Fixed assct depreciation costs 76.807.507.960 65,257,944 434
Qutsourcing service costs 23.863.906.383 62,734,208.390
Other costs 30.499.906,720 25.413.002.993

Add 425.427.605.079

596.686.565.697
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TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address; No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024

Notes to the Financial Statementssynthetic (next)

VII. OTHER INFORMATION
1.  Related party information

Related parties to the Company include; key management members, individuals related to key
management members and other related parties,

A, Transactions and balances with key management members and individuals related to key
management members

Key management members include: members of the Board of Directors and members of the
Exccutive Board (Board of Management). Individuals related to key managemeni members are
close family members of key management members.

The list of key management members and related individuals is as follows:

STT Full name Relationship
1 Mr. Nguyen Hong Son Chairman of the Board
2 Mr. Tran Van Hoan Board Member
3 Mr. Nguyen Duy Hien Board Member
4 Mr. Doan Quang Le Board Member
5 Ms. Nguyen Hoang Phuong Nga Board Member
6 Mz, Phan Dang Dung Head of Supervisory Board
7 Mr. Nguyen Nam Khanh Chief Accountant
8 Mr, Tran Quoc Hung Board Member
9 Mrs. Nguyen Thi Minh Board Member

Transactions during the year between the Company and key management members and related
individuals are as follows:
As at December 31, 2024, Debts to key management members and individuals related to key
management members are explained in items V.6, V.20a.

Mr. Tran Van Hoan
Pay off personal loans
Advance

Mr, Nguyen Duy Hien

Pay off personal loans
Refund

Mr, Nguyen Nam Khanh
Pay off personal loans

Mrs. Nguyen Thi My Canh

Lend money to companies

Pay off personal loans
Mr. Nguyen Hong Hai
Lend money to companies

Pay off personal loans

This year

Last year

850.000.000

15.650.000.000

21.450.000.000

2.300.000.000

50

1.410.000.000
202.000.000

900.000.000
20.000.000

600.000.000

27.750.000.000

5.407.000.000

9.900.000.000

700.000.000



TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024
Notes to the Financial Statementssynthetic (next)

This year Last year
Mr. Phan Dang Dung
Advance - 45.000.000
Refund - 337.959.000
Ms. Nguyen Thi Thu Trang
Lend money fo companies - 1.600.000.000
Mr. Tran Quoc Hung
Lend money to companies - 3.900.000,000

Ms. Neguyen Hoang Phuong Nga

Lend money to companies 15.000.000.000

Pay off personal loans 1.375.000.000

The income of key management members during the year was as follows:

Full name

Position

Total income Total income last

this year

year

Mr. Nguven Hong Son

Mr. Nguyen Duy Hien

Mr. Tran Van Hoan

Mr. Doan Quang Le

Chairman of the Board
Member of Board of
Directors, Company
Director

Member of Board of
Directors, Deputy Director
of the company

Member of Board of
Directors, Deputy Director
of the company

Ms. Nguyen Hoang Phuong N Board Member

Mr. Nguyen Ba Hoan
Mr. Phan Dang Dung
Mrs. Nguyen Thi Minh
Mr. Tran Quoc Hung
Mr. Nguyen Nam Khanh

Vice president

Head of Supervisory Board
Board Member

Board Member

Chicf Accountant

B, Transactions with other related parties
Other related parties to the Company include:

Related parties

Relationship

VND
7.171.352.441

849.795.644

053,972,829

553.082.369
5.218,564.986
492.439.727
378.803.375
203.418.971
271.790.552

VND
7.201.764.329

846.369.401

675.036.285

576.771.128
5.981.591.858
46.018.708
512.867.151
416.000.737
246,131.951
291.496.775

Hanei Construction Corporation — JSC

Mrs. Nguyen Thi My Canh

Major shareholder

Major sharcholder, wife of Mr. Nguyen Hong Son

Mr, Nguven Hong Hai
Ms, Nguyen Thi Thu Trang
Mr. Tran Viet Anh
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Brother of Mr. Nguyen Hong Son
Mr, Nguyen Nam Khanh's wife
Son-in-law of Mr, Nguyen Hong Son



TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
CONSOLIDATED FINANCTIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal ycar ending December 31, 2024

Notes to the Financial Statementssynthetic (next)

2.

Department information

Segment information is presented by business segment and geographical area. Scgment reporting is
primarily by business segment based on the Company's internal organizational and management
structure and internal financial reporting system because the Company's business activities arc
organized and managed according to the nature of the products and scrvices provided by the
Company with each segment being a business unit providing different products and serving
different markets/because the Company's risks and profitability are affected mainly by differences
in the products and services provided by the Company.

a, Information about business field

The company has the following main business areas:

+Construction materials business: production and trading of bricks, tiles, cement...
+ Real Estate sector: Construction, consulting and trading of investment real estate.
+ Other fields: construction services, solar power business and other services

32
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TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024

Notes to the Financial Statementssynthetictnext) =

B, Information about geographical area
All of the Company's operations take place within the territory of Vietnam, therefore the Company
does not present information on geographical areas.

Financial Risk Management

The Company's operations expose it to the following financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk. The Board of Directors is responsible for establishing policies and controls to
minimize financial risks as well as monitoring the implementation of applied policics and controls.

A, Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a party to a contract is unable to fulfill its obligations, resulting in a
financial loss to the Company.

The Company's credit risks arise primarily from trade receivables and bank deposits.

Accounts receivable

The company minimizes credit risk by only dealing with financially sound entities, requiring
letters of credit or collateral for first-time entities or entities with no known financial capacity. In
addition, accounts receivable staff regularly monitor receivables to urge collection.

The Company's trade receivables are related to many entities and individuals, so the concentration
of credit risk for trade receivables is low.

Bank deposit
The Company's term and non-term bank deposits are held with domestic banks, The Board of
Directors does not foresee any significant credit risks from these deposits.

B, Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will have difficulty meeting its financial obligations due
to lack of funds.

The Board of Directors has ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management. The liquidity risk
of

The Company mainly arises from the fact that financial assets and financial liabilities have
different maturities.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining an appropriate level of cash and cash
equivalents and borrowings deemed adequate by the Board of Directors to meet the Company's
operational needs and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
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TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024

Notes to the Financial Statementssynthetie (next)

The maturity of financial liabilitics based on undiscounted contractual payments is as follows:

1 year or less Over 1 yearto 5 Over 5 years Add
years

Year-end number
Loans and Debts 251,678.166,250 2.116.603,100 362.381.115.392 616.175.884.742
Payable to seller 80.540.125.086 - - 80.540.125.086
Other payables 86.360.469.719 3.065.650.093 - £9.426.119.812
Add 418.578.761.055 5.182.253.193 362.381,115.392 786.142.129.640
Beginning of year number
Loans and Debts 312,118.119.832 3.528.335.100 372.891.292.227 688.537.747.159
Payable to seller 81.709.391,503 - - 81.709.391.503
Other payables 98.047.480.979 2.689.384.528 - 100.736.865.507
Add 491,874,992,314 6.217.719.628 372.891.292.227 870.984.004.169

The Company believes that the concentration of risk with respect to debt repayment is low. The
Company is able to repay its debts when they fall due from cash flows from operations and
proceeds from maturing financial assets.

C, Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk includes three types: currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk,

The sensitivity analyses presented below are based on a constant value of net debt, with the ratio of
fixed-rate debt to floating-rate debt remaining constant.

Foreign exchange risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair valuc or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

Intcrest rate risk of Companymainly related to loans.

The Company manages interest rate risk by analyzing market conditions to obtain the most
favorable interest rates while remaining within its risk management limits.

Other price risks

Other price risk is the risk that the fair valuc or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices other than changes in interest rates and foreign
exchange rates.



TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No, 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024

Notes to the Financial Statementssynthetic (next)

4, Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Financial asscts
Cash and cash
equivalents
Accounts

Loan receivable

Other receivables

Financial assets
available for sale

Financial assets
held to maturity

Add

Book value

Trair value

Year-end number

Beginning of ycar
number

Year-end number

Beginning of year
number

9.890.781.731

97.922.860.251
80.000.000

10.709.426.373

1.000.000.000

13.232.983.266

106.802.074.886
90.000.000

10.265.800.317

1.000,000.000

7.462.313.886

9.890.781.731

97.922.860.251
80.000.000

10.709.426,373

1.000.000.000

13.232 983,266

106.802.074.886
90.000.000

10.265.800.317

1.000.000.000

7.462.313.886

119.603.068.355

138.853.172.355

119.603.068.355

138,853.172.355

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is reflected at the amount at which the
financial instruments could be exchanged in a current transaction between knowledgeable and

willing parties.

The Company uses the following methods and assumptions to estimate fair value:

e The fair value of cash, short-term bank deposits, trade receivables, payables to suppliers and
other short-term liabilities is equivalent to the book value of these items because these

instruments have short maturities.

e The fair value of receivables and loans with fixed or variable interest rates is assessed based on
information such as interest rates, risks, repayment capacity and the nature of risks related to
the debt. Based on this assessment, the Company estimates the allowance for the portion that is

likely to be uncollectible.

The fair value of listed available-for-sale financial assets is the published trading price at the end of
the financial year. The fair value of unlisted available-for-sale financial assets is estimated using

appropriate valuation methods.
Events after the closing date of the consolidated financial statements

The Company's Board of Directors confirms that there are no events occurring after December 31,
2024 up to the date of this report that have not been considered for adjustment of figures or
disclosure in the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 205 Le Duan Street, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024

Notes to the Financial Statementssynthetic (next)

6. Comparison information

Comparative figures on the Consolidated Financial Statements are figures on the 2023
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Audited by Nhan Tam Viet Auditing Company Limited.

Established on March 29, 2025
The chartist Chief Accountant
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TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

No: 461 /TCKT Independence - Freedom - Happiness
Subject: Explanation of fluctuations in net

profit afier tax in in the audited financial

report for 2024 compared to the pre-audit

Jinancial report for 2024

Nghe An, March 24., 2025

To: - State Securities Commission

- Hanoi Stock Exchange
Business name: TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Legal representative: Mr. Nguyen Duy Hien - Title: Director
Head office address: 205 Le Duan Street, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
Tax code: 2900324272

Phone: 02383.844410

Trung Do Joint Stock Company hereby explains the fluctuation in net profit after corporate income tax
in the audited financial report for 2024 compared to the pre-audit financial report for 2024. The details
are as follows:

| Indicator 2024 After 2024 Before Audit Increase/Decrease (+/-)

| Audit (VND) (VYND)

|

VND %

|
Net profit after | 13,607,993,793 1-5,0!2, 179,783 -1,404,185,690 -9,35%
tax ,

The company’s net profit after corporate income tax in 2024 decreased by 9.35% (equivalent to a
decline of 1,404,185,690 VND) compared to the pre-audit net profit for 2024. The above fluctuations
are mainly due to the fact that at the time of the audit, the Company decided to increase the provision

for Science and Technology development fund compared to the time of preparing the independent
financial statements.

The above is the main reason for the increase in profit after corporate income tax in the 2024 audited

Financial Report compared to the profit after corporate income tax in the 2024 pre-audited Financial
Report.

With this document, Trung Do Joint Stock Company respectfully submits the explanation to the State
Securities Commission and Hanoi Stock Exchange for acknowledgement. The financial report for 2024
of the Company is publicly available on the website:

hitp.//www.trungdo.vn/chuyenmuc/quanhecodong, (-
Respectfully,

Recipients:
- As above
- Document Archive
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TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

No:4{2./TCKT Independence - Freedom - Happiness
Subject: Explanation of fluctuations in net
profit afier tax in the Financial Report for

2024
Nghe An, March ,’?.’i., 2025
To: - State Securities Commission
- Hanoi Stock Exchange

Business name: TRUNG DO JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Legal representative: Mr. Nguyen Duy Hien - Title: Director
Head office address: 205 Le Duan Street, Vinh City, Nghe An Province
Tax code: 2900324272

Phone: 02383.844410

Trung Do Joint Stock Company explains the fluctuations in the net profit after corporate income tax in
the Financial Statements for 2024 compared to the Financial Statements for the same period of the
previous year (2023) as follows: ' :

Indicator 2024 (VND) 2023 (VND) Increase/Decrease (+/-)
VYND %
{ Net profit after | 13,607,993,793 34,816,388,916 -21,208,395,123 -60,91%
| tax

Net profit after corporate income tax for 2024 decreased by 60.91% (equivalent to a decline of
21,208.395,123 VND) compared to 2023. The primary reason for this decrease is the challenging
economic situation, which led to a significant drop in revenue and business production profits.

With this document, Trung Do Joint Stock Company respectfully submits the explanation to the State
Securities Commission and Hanoi Stock Exchange for acknowledgement. The financial report for 2024

of the Company is publicly available on the website:
http://www.trungdo.vn/chuyenmuc/quanhecodong. '~

Respectfully, /

Recipients: DIRECTOR
- As above

- Document Archive
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